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VALUES
Teamwork
We have diverse talents and
abilities, but we pull towards the
same direction, acknowledging
each one’s distinct and valuable
contribution to achieve the
common goal.

Professionalism

Integrity

We respect each other
without losing our individual
identity or compromising our
personal values.

We are honest and sincere in
everything we do.

CORPORATE VISION and
MISSION STATEMENT
To be the foremost Filipino-owned company to generate
funds for charity, through innovative systems of providing
affordable and entertaining lottery products, thus spreading
optimism, and increasing value to shareholders.
Pacific Online Systems Corporation
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MESSAGE to STOCKHOLDERS

Keep Calm and Carry on − For Charity
TO OUR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

Net Income
418

2012

The Year of the Water Dragon did not fall short of turbulent seas, but your
Company has managed to temper a challenging business environment and
steer its course through headwinds that could have affected its goals.
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The past years have demonstrated a shift in the regulatory landscape and a
burgeoning demand for PCSO’s products even in distant areas in the archipelago.
The existing base of lottery agents continues to grow, and your Company has
adeptly responded to these changing times, in an effort to provide the best
service to the PCSO and its agents.
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We are pleased to report that your Company successfully closed a difficult
year on the back of record high PCSO Lotto sales. The consolidated net income
climbed to P418 million in 2012, from P392 million in 2011, representing an
increase of 7 percent or P26 million. The consolidated EBITDA for the year
2012 grew by 20 percent to P737 million from P612 million last year . Likewise,
consolidated revenues jumped 21 percent to P1.63 billion in 2012, from P1.35
billion in 2011, as a result of fast tracking the deployment of PCSO’s products in
the market.
The Company’s 2012 revenues for its other core businesses have remained
resilient. Growth in sales was attributed to the continuous rollout of terminals
for all online lottery products, to the beefed up distribution of instant tickets, and
to the engagement of more retailers to offer Keno in their outlets. These factors,
coupled with the introduction of new games and intensified marketing, have
enabled your Company to achieve a wider coverage of the gaming market.

1,354

2011

Arched on its values of integrity, professionalism, and teamwork, the
Company has continued to enhance the equipment and systems that it
seamlessly provides for its principal client, the Philippine Charity Sweepstakes
Office (PCSO).
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By year-end 2012, 5,062 retailers were selling Scratchit™ instant tickets,
bearing an 86 percent growth from 2,716 outlets in 2011.

The Company’s subsidiary, Total Gaming Technologies Inc. (TGTI), has been
successful in expanding its betting sites by the end of 2012. TGTI saw an upsurge
of 613 outlets in 2012, compared to 376 outlets in 2011. Existing lottery agents
who have invested in adding Keno to their product offering have seen Keno as
a new revenue stream for their outlets.
The Company’s solid year-on-year outperformance is a product of its
commitment to carry on the charitable goals of the PCSO. We continue to
invest in technology and in our people, so that we may continue to reinforce
our vision of being the premier Philippine company that purveys hope to its
fellow Filipinos.
The Company and its management are optimistic that by making the PCSO’s
products more accessible to new agents and in new locations, the Group will
achieve its next phase of growth.
As we look on to 2013 and beyond, we will continue to support and assist
the PCSO in generating more revenues for its multitude of charitable causes.
We will maintain the course set forth by 2012, and carry on for charity.
Thank you for the continued support and confidence in your Company.

Willy N. Ocier

Chairman and President

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Pacific Online’s team continues to actively
participate in community-based programs that
promote and instil values of well-being, service
to those in need and caring for the environment,
with activities such as the tree planting program
with PCSO in Zamboanga on October 30, 2012,
the Kapamilya Run GenSan on July 8, 2012 and
the Gawad Kalinga-Pacific Online Simply Cares
program held on Sept. 18, 2012 at Barangay
Pinagisang Palad, Quezon City.

Pacific Online Systems Corporation
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Equipment Lessor for Lotto
Lotto sales ending 2012 posted a 20.33 percent
growth at P10.7 billion compared to P8.9 billion in 2011.
Suertres Lotto (3D) consistently maintained its brand
leadership at 61 percent of annual sales, followed by
GrandLotto 6/55 at 13 percent, and SuperLotto 6/49
at 10 percent. MegaLotto 6/45 steadily contributed to
the annual sales with 7 percent along with Lotto 6/42
at 5 percent, EZ2 Lotto (2D) at 2 percent and 4-Digit
Game (4D) at 1 percent.
The growth in lotto sales in 2012 was mainly
due to a 48 percent jump in terminal installations
during the year. The year ended with 2,834 terminals
installed versus last year’s 921. The high jackpot prizes
for GrandLotto 6/55 and SuperLotto 6/49 likewise
contributed in the 2-digit sales growth. GrandLotto
6/55 and SuperLotto 6/49 had jackpot prizes over P100
million, at four times and one time, respectively, within
the year.
Your Company successfully designed a prototype
3G modem/router with two radio modules that
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enables our lotto terminals to operate on dual online
status with two telco providers at any given time,
further improving our online lotto network efficiency
and availability. Likewise, we continued to work on the
lotto support systems upgrades in the areas of terminal
management, data center operations, and logistics, to
ensure prompt delivery of services to the lotto agents.

Equipment Lessor for Keno
Keno sales in 2012 significantly grew to P1.04
billion, or a 68.8 percent growth over last year’s P614.5
million sales. This year’s highest daily net sales of P4.6
million is almost double that of 2011. The robust sales
performance of Keno this year is due to its growing
market acceptance as evidenced by a 63.3 percent
increase in the number of Keno betting sites to 613
versus the 376 outlets in 2011.
Majority of the Keno agents are located in the
National Capital Region (NCR) at 207 outlets, accounting
for 34 percent of total Keno agents nationwide. Next
to NCR, Southern Tagalog and Bicol Region (STBR)
accounts for 27 percent or a total of 167 sites. Visayas and
Mindanao together, with 89 and 81 sites, respectively,
comprise about 27 percent of the total Keno sites.
Northern and Central
Luzon (NCL) with 69
sites, represents the
smallest share at 11
percent. With over
3,000 lotto agents
nationwide, Keno still
has a huge potential
to grow, especially in
the Luzon area.

Retail Network
Loto Pacific Leisure Corporation, which continues to manage
your Company’s retail network, attributes its main growth
driver for 2012 with the opening of more outlets in major malls,
hypermarkets, and supermarkets nationwide.

To further expand the reach of Keno, sales rallies were
conducted in NCR in cooperation with PCSO. Top Lotto agents
and operators were invited to these events, which provided an
orientation on how to play Keno and the benefits of becoming a
Keno agent. Keno customer service representatives continue to
provide marketing and training support to new Keno agents to
ensure that they achieve their keno sales targets. More aggressive
Keno agent recruitment initiatives are being developed to ensure
that by end of next year, your Company can double its sales target
and number of outlets

Your Company’s on-going efforts in upgrading its point of
sales systems and outlet designs, plus continuous sales training
of its sales personnel, enabled it to effectively showcase all PCSO
products – Lotto, Keno, Instant Tickets and Traditional Sweepstakes.
In 2013, Loto Pacific Leisure will be implementing innovative store
concept designs that will render its retail outlets to be at par with
global lottery outlet standards.

Instant Tickets
Your Company’s Scratchit™ instant tickets operations’
impressive performance during 2012 can largely be attributed
to the continuing expansion of outlet network in partnership
with its sub-distributors covering National Capital Region, North
and Central Luzon, Southern Tagalog and Bicol Region as well as
Visayas. By the end of 2012, outlet penetration for instant tickets
grew to 5,062, or an increase of 86 percent versus 2011.
Established branded games, like “Go Bananas,” “Red Hot 7’s”
and “Cash Extravaganza” continued to bring in the bulk of the sales
as more new retail outlets are tapped to sell Scratchit™ tickets, in
conjunction with trade support programs like “Teller Ko, Mahal Ko,”
and other localized promotions initiated by the sub-distributors.
Leveraging on further
expanding the retail network
through introduction of new
games as well as creating
direct and targeted marketing
programs, your Company
looks to 2013 with much
optimism and carry on with
its steady growth year on year
for its Scratchit™ business.
Pacific Online Systems Corporation
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS and REVIEW

The following data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
of Operating Performance and Financial Condition included in the Financial Section of this Annual Report.
Years Ended December 31

2012

INCOME STATEMENT DATA
Revenues
Operating expenses
Earnings before interest, taxes and
depreciation (EBITDA)
Net income after taxes
Earnings per share (EPS)

2011
2010
(amounts in million pesos except EPS)

2009

1,631.45
1,068.79

1,354.42
894.12

1,246.75
867.81

962.10
638.61

736.77
418.13

611.76
392.06

515.65
430.34

440.57
263.44

1.4155

1.8965

2.1500

1.3461

2,305.51

1,673.56

1,273.02

895.57

729.20

420.40

437.71

372.07

1,576.31

1,253.16

835.31

523.50

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Total Equity

Consolidated Financial Results

Net Income

Pacific Online Systems Corporation’s key performance
indicators in 2012 were marked by a broad-based increase
in core revenues of the Company. One of the salient growth
contributors was the deployment of more sales-generating
terminals, both Lotto and Keno, to keep pace with the continued
coverage by the Philippine Charity Sweepstakes Office (PCSO)
of its territorial jurisdictions, and the continued improvement of
your Company’s other core businesses. All these developments
further strengthened the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries. In addition to its core gaming operations, the
Company’s subsidiary, Total Gaming Technologies, Inc. (TGTI),
increased terminal roll-outs as market acceptance further grew
for the Keno game. Thus, terminal installations reached 613, more
than 60 percent increase from the previous year.

As a result of aforementioned increase in revenues, your
Company posted consolidated net income after taxes of P418.1
million, a 7 percent increase when compared to P392.1 million
in the previous year. Your Company’s single-digit increase in net
income posted in 2012 was because of lower gains arising from
its marketable securities from P69.0 million to P11.0 million due to
market volatility during 2012.

Revenues
Consolidated revenues for 2012 of P1.63 billion were higher
by P277.0 million or a 20 percent significant increase from 2011.
Rental revenues for the year 2012 likewise grew to P1.2 billion,
or an increase of 24 percent, from P968.0 million in 2011. Your
Company’s subsidiary in lotto retail business contributed P183.6
million which consisted of commissions of its sales of PCSO lottery
products.

Expenses
Total costs and expenses increased from P894.1 last year to
P1.07 billion in 2012, or an increase of P174.7 million, the most
significant of which were pertaining to roll-out of additional
terminals.
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Liquidity and Debt Level
With favorable operating results, your Company still posted
a strong financial position in 2012. We closed the year with cash
and cash equivalents of P683.8 million accounting for 40 percent
of total current assets. Your Company has minimal noncurrent
debt except for its obligations under finance lease where the
operating terminals are presently accounted for.

Capital Management
The Company’s financial position remained sound. Total
assets amounted to P2.3 billion or 38 percent higher than 2011
levels of P1.7 billion. With the P418.1 million net income registered
for the year, Stockholders’ Equity grew significantly by 26 percent
or P323.2 million to P1.6 billion. Retained Earnings balance
significantly increased by P319.4 million or 40 percent to P1.1
billion even after the declaration and issuance of stock dividends
amounting to P97.5 million.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal roles of the Board of Directors of
Pacific Online are to oversee how management serves the
interests of the shareholders and other stakeholders, and to
ensure that the latter are adequately and timely informed of
all relevant information about the Company.  Towards this
end, the Board has adopted corporate governance principles
to ensure its independence and keep itself fully-informed
of the key risks and strategic issues facing Pacific Online.  
And to assist the Board in ensuring compliance with good
corporate governance principles, the following committees
have been formed.

Board Committees
The Board has organized the following Committees:
The Executive Committee which exercises, in between
meetings of the Board, all the powers of the Board (except those
powers expressly reserved by applicable law to the Board) in the
management and direction of the business and conduct of the
affairs of the Company, subject to any specific directions given by
the Board.
The Audit Committee assists the Company’s Board in
discharging its responsibilities with regards to financial reporting,
external and internal audits and controls, including reviewing
Pacific Online’s quarterly and annual financial statements,
considering the scope of the Company’s annual external audit,
approving the Company’s internal audit program, advising on the
appointment of external auditors, and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control systems and risk management
systems.

The principal roles of the Compensation and Remuneration
Committee are: (i) to consider and determine all elements of
the remuneration of the executive officers and of the heads of
the operating subsidiaries; and (ii) to determine targets for any
performance-related pay schemes operated by the Company. The
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board
in regard to all elements of the remuneration for the executives
and the directors. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing, from time-to-time, the structure of Pacific Online’s
Board; and identifying, evaluating and recommending candidates
for Board vacancies to ensure there is a balanced Board in terms of
skills, knowledge and experience.
The Risk Committee assists the Board in the performance of its
oversight responsibility for the financial reporting process, system
of internal control, audit process, and monitoring of compliance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations; and provide oversight
over Management’s activities in managing credit, market, liquidity,
operational, legal and other risks of the Company.

Market Disclosures
Pacific Online is committed to maintaining the highest
standards of disclosure ensuring that all investors and potential
investors have the same access to high-quality, relevant
information in an accessible and timely manner to assist them in
making informed decisions. The Company ensures compliance
with the market disclosure obligations prescribed by the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the Philippine Stock Exchange;
and has implemented reporting processes and controls and set
guidelines for the release of information.

Audit
Committee

Nomination
Committee

Compensation
and Remuneration
Committee

Risk
Committee

Jerry C. Tiu – Chairman

Wilson L. Sy - Chairman

Jerry C. Tiu – Chairman

Wilson L. Sy - Chairman

Wilson L. Sy
Carmelita dL. Chan

Manuel A. de Leon
Frederic C. DyBuncio

Manuel A. de Leon
Tarcisio M. Medalla

Carmelita dL. Chan
Frederic C. DyBuncio

Pacific Online Systems Corporation
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Willy N. Ocier

Chairman and President
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Manuel A. de Leon

Vice Chairman and
Executive Vice President

Carmelita dL. Chan
Director and
Executive Vice President

Leonardo S. Gayao
Director

Tarcisio M. Medalla

Frederic C. DyBuncio
Director

Henry N. Ocier

Director

Director

Wilson L. Sy

Independent Director

Jerry C. Tiu

Independent Director

Pacific Online Systems Corporation
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Willy N. Ocier

Manuel A. de Leon

Chairman and President

Vice Chairman and
Executive Vice President

Carmelita dL. Chan
Director and
Executive Vice President

Roger S. Go

Chief Operating Officer and
Senior Vice President
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Rhederick B. Inciong
Chief Financial Officer and
Senior Vice President

Lamberto V. David

Ma. Virginia V. Abo-Hamda

Vice President
Lottery Operations

A. Bayani K. Tan

Vice President
Marketing

Jason C. Nalupta

Corporate Secretary

Assistant Corporate
Secretary

Antonio P. Reyes

Chief Operating Officer
Total Gaming Technologies, Inc.

Lucila A. Taguba

Vice President
Loto Pacific Leisure Corp.
Pacific Online Systems Corporation
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KEY DEPARTMENT OFFICERS

Valentino L. Kintanar

Romeo J. Roque, Jr.

Assistant Vice President
Lottery Terminal Management

Assistant Vice President
Telecommunications and
Field Operations

Benjamin D. Auman

Manager
Lottery Terminal Management

Sandie C. Salimbangon

Christopher C. Villaflor

Manager
Telecommunications and
Field Operations

Manager
Computer Operations

Joseph Virgilio P. Jamias
Manager
Sales and Distribution
Instant Tickets
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Robert C. Dela Cruz

Rolando S. Hornada

MIS/IT Senior Manager

Logistics Manager

Mary Anne B. Bugaring
Human Resources Manager

Irene L. Bautista
Finance Manager

Grace L. Gatdula
Marketing Manager

Catherine Michelle E. Panotes
Executive Assistant
Office of the President

Mischel Gabrielle E.Y. Ocier
Corporate Planning Specialist

Pacific Online Systems Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis of
Operating Performance and Financial Condition
Results of Operations and Financial Condition
2012 Compared to 2011
Pacific Online Systems Corporation (the “Company”) generated total revenues
from operating sources of about P1.6 billion for the year ended December 31,
2012, an increase of P277.0 million (20%) over total revenues of P1.3 billion
during the same period in 2011. This increase was mainly due to increases in
terminals deployed for both Lotto and Keno.
The Company’s total operating expenses, including depreciation and
amortization, for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased by P174.7 million
(20%) to P1.07 billion, from P894.1 million in 2011. The increase is attributed to
the following:

- Repairs and maintenance by P6.5 million (17%) due to lower
utilization of terminal spare parts.
• Other income (net of other charges) significantly decreased to
P34.1 million in 2012 from P77.2 million in 2011, due to lower markto-market gain on marketable securities.
As a result of the above developments, the Company realized net income
of P418.1 million for the year ended December 31,2012, an increase of
P26.0 million (7%) from net income of P392.1 million posted in 2011.
Total assets of the Company increased by P632.0 million (38%) to P2.3 billion
as of December 31, 2012, from P1.7 billion as of December 31, 2011.

• Depreciation and amortization charges increased by P22.7 million
(15%) mainly due to the increased number of terminals deployed.

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2012 had a hefty increase by
P412.7 million mainly due to higher operating income which in turn resulted in
higher operating liquidity.

• Personnel costs increased by P24.0 million increased by P24.0 million
(19%) mainly due to increase in manpower complement and personnel
compensation.

Marketable securities increased by P85.3 million principally due to mark-tomarket gain and acquisitions of additional securities which constitute the
Company’s stock investment portfolio.

• Consultancy and software license fees increased by P59.7 million (43%)
due to fee arrangements based on sales.

The trade and other receivables are principally receivables from PCSO
representing ELA share of the Company. The increase of P118.2 million was
due to the increase in sales, among others.

• Travel and accommodation increased by P18.0 million (21%) due to
various business activities across the country.
• Communication costs increased by P8.7 million (14%) due to higher
telecommunication charges relative to operations of Lotto and Keno.
• Management fees increased by P11.0 million (20%) due to the increase
in earnings before tax.
• Advertising and promotion increased by P11.5 million (37%) mainly
due to marketing service fees paid to sub-distributors and other
marketing promotional activities.
• Taxes and licenses by P3.3 million (19%) due to higher incidental taxes
paid.
• Professional fees by P2.9 million (26%) principally due to higher legal
fees incurred.
• Entertainment, amusement, and recreation increased by P4.8 million
(41%) because of higher incidental business expenses incurred.
• Operating supplies increased by P19.1 million (78%) due to the supply
of both Lotto and Keno consumables.

Total current liabilities increased by P330.3 million from P346.1 million in 2011
to P676.4 million in 2012 mainly due to higher trade payables, which consist
of payables to PCSO for unremitted from the sale of lotto tickets and payable
to suppliers of sweepstakes and other tickets; income and withholding taxes
payable; and obligations under finance lease.
Summarized below are the relevant measures used in analyzing the Company’s
result of operations.

Return on Stockholders’ Equity
Return on Assets
Earnings per Share
Revenues Growth
Net Profit Margin

2012

2011

26.5%
18.1%
1.4
20.5%
25.6%

31.3%
23.4%
1.9
8.7%
28.9%

With higher current liabilities compared to prior year, the Company’s debt
to equity ratio decreased to 0.46 from 0.34. The Company’s working capital
efficiency, measured by current ratio still at a comfortable level of 2.51 from
2.77.
The Company and subsidiaries:

• Impairment losses on receivables P5.8 million (131%) due to increase
in allowance for some past-due accounts.

a)

• Other expenses increased by P6.8 million (49%) due to higher incidental
operating expenses.

b)

• The increases accounted for in the foregoing expense accounts were
offset mainly by the combined decreases of the following expense
accounts:

c)

- Rent and utilities by P16.9 million (14%) mainly due to reduced
number of outlets being rented.

d)

Have no known trends or any demands, commitments, events
or uncertainties that will result in or that are likely to result in the
liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way;
Have no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial
obligation that is material to the company, including any default or
acceleration of an obligation;
Have no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements,
obligations (including contingent obligations), and other
relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons created
during the reporting period; and
Have not breached any loans, leases or other indebtedness or
financing agreement.

Pacific Online Systems Corporation
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The above performance indicators are calculated as follows:
Return on Stockholders’ Equity

Net Income
Total Equity

Return on Assets

Net Income
Total Assets

		

Earnings per Share

Net Income
Weighted Average Number
of Outstanding Shares

Revenues Growth

Total Revenue of Current Year
Total Revenue of Previous Year

Net Profit Margin
Debt to Equity Ratio

		

Net Income
		
Total Revenues
Total Liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity

2011 Compared to 2010
Pacific Online Systems Corporation (the “Company”) generated total revenues
from operating sources of P1.35 billion for the year ended December 31, 2011,
an increase of P10.0 million ( 9%) over total revenues of P1.25 billion in 2010.
This increase was mainly due to increases in terminals deployed and improved
distribution of instant scratch tickets.
The Company’s total operating expenses, including depreciation and
amortization, for the year ended December 31, 2011 increased by P26.3 million
(3%) to P894.1 million, from P867.8 million in 2010. The increase is attributed
to the following:

Professional fees decreased by P8.4 million (43%) principally due to lower legal
fees incurred.
Impairment losses on receivables decreased by P2.7 million (38%) due to
improved collections of outstanding accounts.
Other expenses decreased buy P6.0 million (30%) due to lower marketing
expenses.
Other income (net of other charges) significantly decreased to P77.2 in 2011
from P169.6 million in 2010, due to lower mark-to-market gain on marketable
securities.
As a result of the above developments, the Company realized net income of
P392.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, a decrease of P38.2 million
(9%) from net income of P430.3 million posted in 2010.
Total assets of the Company increased by P400.5 million (31% ) to P1.674 billion
as of December 31, 2011, from P1.273 billion as of December 31, 2010.
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2011decreased by P66.4 million
mainly due to investments in LRWC specifically the 25 million shares participation
in private placement.
Marketable securities increased by P221.9 million principally due to markto-market gain and acquisitions of additional securities which constitute the
Company’s stock investment portfolio.
The trade and other receivables are principally receivables from PCSO
representing ELA/MRA share of the Company. The increase of P85.8 million
was due to the increase in sales, among others.

Depreciation and amortization charges increased by P14.8 million (11%) mainly
due to the increased number of terminals deployed.

Total current liabilities increased by P46.9 million from P299.2 million in 2010
to P346.1 million in 2011 mainly due to higher trade payables, which consist of
payables to PCSO for unremitted cash receipts from the sale of lotto tickets and
payable to suppliers of sweepstakes and other tickets; income and withholding
taxes payable; and obligations under finance lease.

Consultancy fees increased by P16.4 million (17%) due to fee arrangements
based on sales.

Summarized below are the relevant measures used in analyzing the Company’s
result of operations.

Rent and utilities increased by P30.9 million (35%) principally due to the rental
costs incurred by Loto Pacific Leisure in its retail lotto outlet operations.
Management fees increased by P4.6 million (9%) due to increase in earnings
before tax.
Repairs and maintenance increased by P12.8 million (31%) mainly due to
utilization of spare parts after the lapse of warranty on some terminals and the
costs of maintaining a back-up data center.
Software and license fees increased by P3.6 million (17%) mainly due to fee
arrangements based on sales. These were non-lease components of payments
to Scientific Games and Intralot.
The increases accounted for in the foregoing expense accounts were offset
mainly by the combined decreases of the following expense accounts:
Travel and accommodation decreased by P9.4 million (10%) due to lower
travel-related activities and given the sustained number of terminals deployed
for Lotto from year 2010 to year 2011.
Communication costs decreased by P4.7 million (7%) due to lower accrual of
telecommunication charges relative to the operations of Lotto and Keno.
Advertising and promotion decreased by P10.8 million (26%) mainly due to
reduced sponsorships during the year.
Taxes and licenses decreased by P13.2 million (44%) due to lower accrual of
statutory taxes.
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Return on Stockholders’ Equity
Return on Assets
Earnings per Share
Revenues Growth
Net Profit Margin

2011
31.3%
23.4%
1.90
8.7%
28.9%

2010
51.5%
33.8%
2.15
29.6%
34.5%

Due to its consistent profitability over recent years, the Company’s debt
to equity ratio further improved to 0.34 from 0.52. The Company’s working
capital efficiency, measured by current ratio likewise reached a comfortable
level at 3.06 from 2.77.
The Company and subsidiaries:
e)
f)
g)

h)

Have no known trends or any demands, commitments, events
or uncertainties that will result in or that are likely to result in the
liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way;
Have no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial
obligation that is material to the company, including any default or
acceleration of an obligation;
Have no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements,
obligations (including contingent obligations), and other
relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons created
during the reporting period; and
Have not breached any loans, leases or other indebtedness or
financing agreement.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The management of PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements as at and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, including the additional components
attached therein, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein. This responsibility includes
designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of separate financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits the same to the stockholders.
Manabat Sanagustin & Co., CPAs, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders for the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively, has audited the financial statements of the PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION in accordance with
Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit.

WILLY N. OCIER
President and Chairman of the Board

RHEDERICK B. INCIONG
Chief Financial Officer

Signed this 5th day of March 2013

Pacific Online Systems Corporation
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Pacific Online Systems Corporation and Subsidiaries
19th Floor, West Tower, PSE Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
Pasig City
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Online Systems Corporation and Subsidiaries which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2012, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance
with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Pacific Online Systems
Corporation and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
MANABAT SANAGUSTIN & CO., CPAs

JOSE P. JAVIER, JR.
Partner
CPA License No. 0070807
SEC Accreditation No. 0678-AR-1, Group A, valid until March 30, 2014
Tax Identification No. 112-071-224
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-16-2011
Issued February 4, 2011; valid until February 3, 2014
PTR No. 3669514MC
Issued January 2, 2013 at Makati City
March 5, 2013
Makati City, Metro Manila
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PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities
Trade and other receivables - net
Other current assets

7, 25
8, 25
2, 9, 17, 25
10

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Property and equipment - net
Goodwill and intangible assets - net
Deferred tax assets
Other noncurrent assets

11, 25
12, 21
13
20
2, 25

Total Noncurrent Assets

December 31
2012

2011

P683,836,101
541,480,024
385,117,530
86,822,220

P271,125,764
456,168,573
266,906,586
66,308,115

1,697,255,875

1,060,509,038

207,500,000
326,612,556
18,745,730
11,955,729
43,445,017

227,250,000
305,015,747
23,051,527
12,279,479
45,453,034

608,259,032
P2,305,514,907

613,049,787
P1,673,558,825

P572,728,918
30,433,906
6,775,016
9,614,225
56,881,357

P209,412,943
89,133,836
5,721,447
7,512,816
34,306,857

676,433,422

346,087,899

47,188,746
36,806
5,542,135

68,082,961
2,941,744
3,287,627

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other current liabilities
Current portion of obligations under finance lease
Current portion of installment payable
Withholding taxes payable
Income tax payable
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Obligations under finance lease - net of current portion
Installment payable - net of current portion
Defined benefit liability

14, 21, 25
12, 21, 25
12, 21, 25

12, 21, 25
12, 21, 25
23

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock
Fair value reserve
Retained earnings
Non-controlling Interests
Total Equity

15, 16
15, 16
15
15

52,767,687

74,312,332

729,201,109

420,400,231

P298,443,650
275,652,351
(114,769,815)
20,000,000
1,117,144,703
1,596,470,889
(20,157,091)

P200,898,000
275,607,520
(39,461,243)
39,750,000
797,765,639
1,274,559,916
(21,401,322)

1,576,313,798

1,253,158,594

P2,305,514,907

P1,673,558,825

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

REVENUES
Equipment rental
Instant scratch tickets
Commission income
Maintenance and repair fees
COSTS AND EXPENSES

Note

2012

2011

2010

2, 21
2
4
2

P1,199,563,380
238,233,166
183,636,923
10,021,467

P967,955,621
187,750,536
185,379,349
13,336,786

P903,670,051
165,983,725
163,958,267
13,139,426

1,631,454,936

1,354,422,292

1,246,751,469

1,068,792,504

894,117,048

867,811,884

562,662,432

460,305,244

378,939,585

9,575,241
8,287,355
2,159,840

20,682,977
4,856,543
(465,895)

157,847,186
3,009,586
910,939

1,561,691
(185,973)
(13,931,729)
26,610,092

48,479,546
(156,792)
(20,295,799)
24,118,932

14,674,558
10,766
(24,901,787)
18,062,022

34,076,517

77,219,512

169,613,270

596,738,949

537,524,756

548,552,855

178,281,252
323,752

143,268,932
2,193,666

126,724,189
(8,514,399)

18

OPERATING INCOME
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Mark-to-market gain on marketable securities
Interest income
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Gain (loss) on sale of:
Marketable securities
Property and equipment
Finance charges
Others - net

8
19

12
21
22

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current
Deferred

20

NET INCOME
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

24

178,605,004

145,462,598

118,209,790

P418,133,945

P392,062,158

P430,343,065

P416,889,714
1,244,231

P391,591,837
470,321

P429,335,805
1,007,260

P418,133,945

P392,062,158

P430,343,065

Basic Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity Holders
of the Parent Company

24

P1.4155

P1.8965

P2.1558

Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Parent Company

24

P1.4155

P1.8965

P2.1500

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Note
NET INCOME
GAIN ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
- NET OF TAX
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
- NET OF TAX
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2012

2011

2010

P418,133,945

P392,062,158

P430,343,065

(19,750,000)

39,750,000

-

P398,383,945

P431,812,158

P430,343,065

P397,139,714
1,244,231

P431,341,837
470,321

P429,335,805
1,007,260

P398,383,945

P431,812,158

P430,343,065

PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Finance charges
Impairment loss on receivables
Share-based compensation
Unrealized mark-to-market gain on marketable
securities
Interest income
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss
Dividend income
Loss (gain) on sale of:
Marketable securities
Property and equipment
Operating income before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other current liabilities
Withholding taxes payable
Defined benefit liability
Interest received
Income tax paid

12, 13, 18
9
16
8
19

Net cash flows provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Property and equipment
Marketable securities
Available-for-sale financial assets
Decrease (increase) in other noncurrent assets
Proceeds from sale of:
Marketable securities
Property and equipment
Dividend received

12, 21, 26
8

Net cash flows used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of:
Cash dividends
Obligations under finance lease
Installment payable
Acquisitions of treasury stock
Interest paid
Cash proceeds from:
Sale of treasury stock
Issuance of capital stock (net of issuance costs)

15
21
21
15
15

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2010

P596,738,949

P537,524,756

P548,552,855

151,450,189
20,295,799
4,388,237
-

136,706,077
24,901,787
7,134,024
463,852

(9,575,241)
(8,287,355)
(2,159,840)
(1,131,000)

(20,682,977)
(4,856,543)
465,895
(757,650)

(157,847,186)
(3,009,586)
(910,939)
(21,750)

(1,561,691)
185,973
757,089,690

(48,479,546)
156,792
639,504,952

(14,674,559)
(10,766)
541,283,809

(113,052,611)
(20,514,106)

(90,204,002)
8,663,922

(20,487,410)
(19,565,752)

365,475,815
2,101,408
2,254,508
8,287,355
(156,950,984)

53,661,745
(4,789,284)
(707,191)
4,856,543
(148,873,478)

70,181,446
6,393,633
(829,184)
3,009,586
(96,971,782)

844,691,075

462,113,207

483,014,346

(80,997,178)
(85,835,210)
2,008,020

(35,338,945)
(471,918,462)
(187,500,000)
(20,394,453)

(104,533,446)
(1,707,371)
(12,613,570)

11,660,691
1,314,463
1,131,000

319,170,165
541,881
757,650

73,642,559
4,023,648
21,750

(150,718,214)

(394,682,164)

(41,166,430)

P (191,494,917)
(1,851,369)
(75,566,923)
(13,931,729)

(P99,877,650)
(95,246,179)
(4,266,042)
(39,968,115)
(20,295,799)

(P142,848,751)
(41,192,209)
(10,838,251)
(43,716,379)
(24,901,787)

174,106,499
13,931,729
(5,158,333)
-

303,183
1,279,231

-

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

2011

(281,262,524)

Net cash flows used in financing activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR

2012

121,474,486
4,404,480

63,526,698
4,040,400

(133,774,819)

(195,930,279)

12,696

-

412,710,337

(66,331,080)

245,917,637

7

271,125,764

337,456,844

91,539,207

7

P683,836,101

P271,125,764

P337,456,844

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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15
16
15
15
15

15
15
15
15

11

P201,367,040
201,367,040
3,585,400
463,852
21,925,962
P227,342,254

199,948,000
455,000
P200,403,000

227,342,254
3,909,480
44,355,786
P275,607,520

200,403,000
495,000
P200,898,000
P199,948,000
-

227,342,254
-

P227,342,254

200,403,000
-

P200,403,000

275,607,520
44,831
P275,652,351

200,898,000
35,000
97,510,650
P298,443,650

15
15
15
15

275,607,520
-

200,898,000
-

11

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Balance at January 1, 2010
Other comprehensive income
Net income during the year
Total comprehensive income for the
year
Additional subscription
Share based payment
Cash dividends
Treasury stock acquired
Treasury stock sold
Balance at December 31, 2010

Balance at January 1, 2011
Change in the fair value of availablefor-sale financial assets
Other comprehensive income
Net income during the year
Total comprehensive income for the
year
Additional subscription
Cash dividends
Treasury stock acquired
Treasury stock sold
Balance at December 31, 2011

Balance at January 1, 2012
Change in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets
Other comprehensive income
Net income during the year
Total comprehensive income for
the year
Additional subscription
Stock dividends
Treasury stock acquired
Treasury stock sold
Balance at December 31, 2012

Capital Stock
P200,898,000

(74,496,185)
(43,716,379)
41,600,736
(P76,611,828)

(P74,496,185)
-

(76,611,828)
(39,968,115)
77,118,700
(P39,461,243)

(76,611,828)
-

(P76,611,828)

(39,461,243)
(75,566,924)
258,352
(P114,769,815)

(39,461,243)
-

39,750,000
P39,750,000

39,750,000
39,750,000
-

P -

20,000,000
P20,000,000

(19,750,000)
20,000,000
-

648,900,203
(142,848,751)
P506,051,452

P219,564,398
429,335,805

897,643,289
(99,877,650)
P797,765,639

506,051,452
391,591,837

P506,051,452

1,214,655,353
(97,510,650)
P1,117,144,703

797,765,639
416,889,714

975,719,058
4,040,400
463,852
(142,848,751)
(43,716,379)
63,526,698
P857,184,878

P546,383,253
429,335,805

1,288,526,715
4,404,480
(99,877,650)
(39,968,115)
121,474,486
P1,274,559,916

39,750,000
896,934,878
391,591,837

P857,184,878

1,671,699,630
35,000
(75,566,924)
303,183
P1,596,470,889

(19,750,000)
1,254,809,916
416,889,714

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Additional
Fair
Paid-in
Treasury
Value
Retained
Capital
Stock
Reserve
Earnings
Total
P275,607,520
(P39,461,243)
P39,750,000
P797,765,639
P1,274,559,916

Note

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(21,871,643)
(P21,871,643)

(P22,878,903)
1,007,260

(21,401,322)
(P21,401,322)

(21,871,643)
470,321

(P21,871,643)

(20,157,091)
(P20,157,091)

(21,401,322)
1,244,231

NonControlling
Interest
(P21,401,322)

953,847,415
4,040,400
463,852
(142,848,751)
(43,716,379)
63,526,698
P835,313,235

P523,504,350
430,343,065

1,267,125,393
4,404,480
(99,877,650)
(39,968,115)
121,474,486
P1,253,158,594

39,750,000
875,063,235
392,062,158

P835,313,235

1,651,542,539
35,000
(75,566,924)
303,183
P1,576,313,798

(19,750,000)
1,233,408,594
418,133,945

Total
Equity
P1,253,158,54
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Reporting Entity

In 2012, the 10.6 million shares of TGTI held by Innovative were assigned
to the Parent company in lieu of Innovative’s liabilities to the Parent. As of
December 31, 2012, net assets of Innovative amounted to P0.31 million. The
Parent company will continue to hold its 87.38% remaining ownership in
Innovative until approval of Innovative’s application for dissolution is granted
by the SEC. On March 5, 2013, the SEC issued the certificate of dissolution of
Innovative to formally end the latter’s legal life. As a result, the Parent now
holds 80% ownership of Innovative to TGTI on that date.

Corporate Information
Pacific Online Systems Corporation (“Pacific Online” or “Parent Company”)
and the following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) are
incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) on various dates:

Loto Pacific Leisure Corporation
(“LotoPac”)
Lucky Circle Corporation (“LCC”)*
Innovative Solutions
Consultancy Group Corp.
(“Innovative”)***
Total Gaming Technologies, Inc.
(“TGTI”)**

Percentage of Ownership
2012
2011
Direct Indirect
Direct Indirect
100.00
97.64

2.36

100.00
97.64

2.36

87.38

-

87.38

-

-

69.90

-

69.90

TGTI has an equipment lease agreement (ELA) with PCSO for the latter’s Online
Keno Lottery Project (“Online Keno”). In accordance with the terms of the ELA,
TGTI also provides consultancy service to PCSO relative to the Online Keno.
On December 20, 2012, the majority of TGTI’s BOD and stockholders approved
the former’s application for the increase in its authorized capital stock with
the SEC from Fifty Million Pesos (P50,000,000.00) divided into Forty Million
(40,000,000) common shares and Ten Million (10,000,000) preferred shares
both having a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per share to Seven Hundred
Million Pesos (P700,000,000.00), divided into Six Hundred Ninety Million
(690,000,000) common shares and Ten Million (10,000,000) preferred shares,
both having a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per share. On December 20, 2012,
the Parent Company’s BOD approved the conversion of a major portion of its
outstanding advances to TGTI to the latter’s equity. TGTI on the other hand will
convert a major portion of its outstanding obligation to the Parent Company
from liabilities to equity under “Deposit for future stock subscription” account
once its application to increase its authorized capital stock is filed with the
SEC. On March 5, 2013, TGTI has filed its application to increase its authorized
capital stock with the SEC.

* Indirectly owned through LotoPac
** Indirectly owned through Innovative
*** In the process of liquidation

Pacific Online
The Parent Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of the Securities
Regulation Code (SRC) and its shares are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange, Inc. (PSE). The Parent Company is engaged in the development,
design and management of online computer systems, terminals and software
for the gaming industry. The Parent Company can also engage in any lawful
arrangement for sharing profits, union of interest, unitization or formal
agreement, reciprocal concession, or cooperation with any corporation,
association, partnership, syndicate, entity, person on governmental, municipal
or public authority, domestic or foreign. The registered office address of the
Parent Company is 19th Floor, West Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road,
Ortigas Center, Pasig City.
LotoPac and LCC
LotoPac was incorporated primarily to acquire, establish, own, hold, lease,
sell, conduct, operate, and manage amusement, recreational and gaming
equipment facilities, and enterprise of every kind and nature, as well as places
for exhibitions, recreation, gaming, amusement and leisure of the general
public, and to acquire, hold and operate any and all privileges, rights, franchises
and concessions as may be proper, necessary, advantageous, or convenient in
the conduct of its business.
LCC is an authorized agent of the Philippine Charity Sweepstakes Office (PCSO)
to operate several online lottery betting stations located at branches of the
SM Supermalls nationwide. LotoPac and LCC are entitled to receive a certain
percentage of the sales of PCSO lottery, sweepstakes and instant scratch
tickets (see Note 2). In 2010, the Parent Company subscribed to additional 124
million shares of LCC, after the SEC’s approval of the increase in the latter’s
authorized capital stock, which increased the Parent Company’s interest in
LCC to 97.64%.
In 2011, PCSO issued a memorandum which limits the number of lotto outlets
owned by operators nationwide. The management of LCC is in the process
of finalizing the necessary documentation for the sale and transfer of certain
lotto outlets to third parties to comply with the recent PCSO memorandum.
The management of LCC believes that LCC is already compliant with the recent
PCSO memorandum as at December 31, 2012 since all agency agreements by
LCC with PCSO for all lotto outlets being operated has been renewed.
Innovative and TGTI
Innovative is a holding company whose primary purpose is to provide
management counsel for business enterprises engaged in the gaming
business. On April 2, 2012, the Board of Directors (BOD) of Innovative
approved the dissolution of the latter and shortened its existence until April
30, 2012. The shortening of the corporate term of Innovative was further
approved by its shareholders during a special meeting held on April 7, 2012.
As of December 31, 2012, Innovative is in the process of liquidation awaiting
approval of dissolution of business by the SEC. Accordingly, Innovative has
changed its basis of accounting from going concern basis to liquidation basis
of accounting, whereby assets are presented at estimated realizable values
and liabilities are presented at their estimated settlement amounts.

2.

Agreements with PCSO
Parent Company
ELA. The Parent Company has an ELA with the PCSO for the lease of not less
than 800 lotto terminals, which includes central computer, communications
equipment and the right to use the application software and manuals for
the central computer system and draw equipment of PCSO for its VisayasMindanao (VISMIN) operations for a period of eight years from April 1, 2005.
PCSO is the principal government agency for raising and providing funds for
health programs, medical assistance and services, and charities of national
character through holding and conducting charity sweepstakes, races, and
lotteries and engages in health and welfare-related investments, projects,
and activities to provide for permanent and continuing sources of funds for its
programs. It also undertakes other activities to enhance and expand such fundgenerating operations as well as strengthen the agency’s fund-management
capabilities.
Amended ELA. On May 22, 2012, the Parent Company and PCSO entered
into an agreement to amend certain provisions of the ELA (Amended ELA)
to include a lowered rental fee on the lotto terminals for VISMIN operations
and for the lease of lotto terminals for Luzon operations and the supply of
betting slips and ticket paper rolls, for an additional lease fee effective June
1, 2012 for a period concurrent with the expiration of the ELA on March 31,
2013. The Parent Company has allocated part of its unrestricted cash bonds
under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of
financial position to guarantee the supply of betting slips and ticket paper rolls
to PCSO.
The ELA provides PCSO an option to purchase the equipment related to its
VISMIN operations at the end of the lease period for a sum of P15.0 million.
In accordance with the terms of the ELA, the Parent Company also provides
maintenance and repair services relative to the equipment leased to PCSO
for a fee. These maintenance and repair services fee were incorporated in the
rental fee as part of the lowered rental rate provision of the Amended ELA.
Fees billed to PCSO for the equipment leased is based on a certain percentage
of gross amount of lotto ticket sales from PCSO’s VISMIN and Luzon operations
or a fixed annual rental of P35,000 per terminal in commercial operation,
whichever is higher, to cover for equipment rental, maintenance and repair
fee, and communication and service fee. Total number of configured
terminals for lotto operations as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were 2,685,
and 2,039, respectively. The Parent Company’s rental income, as computed
by PCSO in accordance with the Amended ELA, amounted to P1.044 billion,
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P875.8 million, and P862.8 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively,
recorded under “Equipment rental” account in profit or loss. Maintenance
and repair services fees earned by the Parent Company are also based on
a certain percentage of the gross amount of lotto ticket sales from PCSO’s
VISMIN operations. Maintenance and repair services fees amounted to
P6.3 million, P13.3 million, and P13.1 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectively. Maintenance and repair fees are waived for both VISMIN and
Luzon operations effective June 1, 2012, upon execution of the Amended
ELA.

•

Functional and Presentation Currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (P or
PHP), which is the Parent Company’s functional currency. All financial information
are rounded off to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company using
consistent accounting policies except for Innovative, which is in the process of
liquidation.

Receivables from PCSO related to the Amended ELA amounted to P120.6 million
and P126.9 million as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and is included
under “Trade and other receivables” account in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 9).
Instant Scratch Tickets. On February 5, 2009, the Parent Company entered into
a memorandum of agreement (MOA) with PCSO to undertake the printing,
distribution and sale of 30 million tickets, comprising a maximum of 8 game
variants to be called the “Diamond Anniversary Series,” to be sold within
eighteen months from the date of the MOA. This is covered by a separate cash
bond agreement for a period of five years from the date of initial launch of
the instant tickets and shall be maintained co-terminus with this MOA. The
cash bond is recognized under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the
consolidated statements of financial position. In July 2010, all the 30 million
Diamond Anniversary Series tickets were sold out by the Parent Company and
the corresponding cash bond was released from restriction on the same date.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefit from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or
convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date when the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when
such control ceases.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Parent Company, using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Intergroup balances
and transactions, including intergroup unrealized profits and losses, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

On March 25, 2009, the Parent Company entered into a new non-exclusive
MOA with PCSO, for a period of seven years, effective December 1, 2009 to
undertake the printing, distribution and sale of scratch tickets. The MOA
requires a cash bond to be deposited in an interest-bearing bank account
designated by PCSO to guarantee the payment of all prizes for each series
of tickets distributed, subject to review by PCSO, which was paid in January
2010, for a period of seven years from the date of initial launch of the instant
tickets and shall be maintained co-terminus with this MOA. The cash bond
is recognized under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position.
TGTI Equipment Rental
TGTI has an ELA with PCSO which provides for the lease of the equipment
for PCSO’s “Online KENO” games. The lease is for a period of ten (10) years
commencing on October 1, 2010, the date of actual operation of at least 200
“Online KENO” outlets. Rental revenue is based on a certain percentage of
the gross amount of sales of the “Online KENO” terminals or a fixed annual
rental of P40,000 per terminal in commercial operation, whichever is higher.
The ELA may be extended and/or renewed upon the mutual consent of the
parties. As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, there are 613 and 376 “Online
KENO” terminals in operation, respectively.

4.

Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to
all years presented in these consolidated financial statements and have
been applied consistently by the Group entities, except for the changes in
accounting policies as explained below.
Adoption of Amendments to Standard
The FRSC approved the adoption of a number of amendments to standard as
part of PFRS.

Rental income from “Online KENO” terminals amounted to P155.6 million,
P92.2 million, and P40.8 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, recorded
under “Equipment rental” account in profit or loss.
Basis of Preparation

Additional disclosures required by the amendments to standard were included
in the consolidated financial statements, where applicable.

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs
are based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). PFRSs consist of PFRSs,
Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs), and Philippine Interpretations issued
by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC).
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 5, 2013.
Basis of Measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for the following:
•
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Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets
not held by the Group and are presented in the consolidated statements of
income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income and within equity
in the consolidated statements of financial position, separately from the
Group’s equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company.

Effective 2012, the Group has adopted the amendments to PFRS 7, Disclosures
- Transfers of Financial Assets which require additional disclosures about
transfers of financial assets. The amendments require disclosure of information
that enables users of the financial statements to understand the relationship
between transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in their
entirety and the associated liabilities; and to evaluate the nature of, and risks
associated with, the entity’s continuing involvement in derecognized financial
assets. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2011. Entities are required to apply the amendments for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2011. The adoption of these amendments did not
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

On July 15, 2008, TGTI and PCSO agreed on certain amendments to the ELA.
Under the terms of the Amended ELA, TGTI shall provide the services of
telecommunications integrator and procure supplies for the “Online KENO”
operations of PCSO in Luzon and VISMIN areas. In consideration for such
services, PCSO shall pay additional fee based on a certain percentage of the
gross amount of sales from all “Online KENO” terminals in operation in Luzon
and VISMIN areas computed by PCSO and payable bi-weekly.

3.

defined benefit liability is measured as the net total of the fair value of
the plan assets, less unrecognized actuarial gains (losses) and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation.

marketable securities and available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets are
measured at fair value; and
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New or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations Not Yet
Adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2012, and have not
been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Except as
otherwise indicated, none of these is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements. Those which may be relevant to the Group
are set out below. The Group does not plan to adopt these standards early.
•

Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to
PAS 1). The amendments: (a) require that an entity present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified
to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those
that would never be reclassified to profit or loss; (b) do not change
the existing option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in two statements; and, (c) change the title of the statement
of comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. However, an entity is still allowed to use other

titles. The amendments do not address which items are presented in
other comprehensive income or which items need to be reclassified.
The requirements of other PFRSs continue to apply in this regard. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
2012 with earlier application permitted and are applied retrospectively.
•

Disclosures: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(Amendments to PFRS 7). These amendments include minimum
disclosure requirements related to financial assets and financial liabilities
that are: (a) offset in the statement of financial position; or (b) subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements. They
include a tabular reconciliation of gross and net amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities, separately showing amounts offset and
not offset in the statement of financial position. These amendments will
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013
and interim periods within those annual periods and are to be applied
retrospectively.

•

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements. PFRS 10 introduces a new
approach to determining which investees should be consolidated and
provides a single model to be applied in the control analysis for all
investees. An investor controls an investee when: (a) it is exposed or
has rights to variable returns from its involvement with that investee;
(b) it has the ability to affect those returns through its power over that
investee; and (c) there is a link between power and returns. Control
is reassessed as facts and circumstances change. PFRS 10 supersedes
PAS 27 (2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and
Philippine Interpretation SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities.
This standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013 with early adoption permitted.

•

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. PFRS 12 contains the
disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements (i.e., joint operations or joint ventures), associates
and/or unconsolidated structured entities, aiming to provide information
to enable users to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, an
entity’s interests in other entities; and the effects of those interests on
the entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013 with early adoption permitted.

•

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance (Amendments to PFRS
10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12). The amendments simplify the process of
adopting PFRSs 10 and 11, and provide relief from the disclosures in
respect of unconsolidated structured entities. Depending on the extent
of comparative information provided in the financial statements, the
amendments simplify the transition and provide additional relief from
the disclosures that could have been onerous. The amendments limit the
restatement of comparatives to the immediately preceding period; this
applies to the full suite of standards. Entities that provide comparatives for
more than one period have the option of leaving additional comparative
periods unchanged. In addition, the date of initial application is now
defined in PFRS 10 as the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the standard is applied for the first time. At this date, an entity
tests whether there is a change in the consolidation conclusion for its
investees. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013 with early adoption permitted.

•

•

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. PFRS 13 replaces the fair value
measurement guidance contained in individual PFRSs with a single
source of fair value measurement guidance. It defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure
requirements for fair value measurements. It explains how to measure
fair value when it is required or permitted by other PFRSs. It does not
introduce new requirements to measure assets or liabilities at fair
value nor does it eliminate the practicability exceptions to fair value
measurements that currently exist in certain standards. This standard is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 with
early adoption permitted.
PAS 19, Employee Benefits (A;mended 2011). The amended PAS 19
includes the following requirements: (a) actuarial gains and losses are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income; this change
will remove the corridor method and eliminate the ability for entities
to recognize all changes in the defined benefit obligation and in plan
assets in profit or loss, which is currently allowed under PAS 19; and, (b)
expected return on plan assets recognized in profit or loss is calculated
based on the rate used to discount the defined benefit obligation. This
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2013 and is applied retrospectively with early adoption permitted.

•

•

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle contain amendments
to 5 standards with consequential amendments to other standards
and interpretations. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013. Those which may be relevant to
the Group are set below, none of which has a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group:
-

PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Comparative
Information beyond Minimum Requirements. This is amended to
clarify that only one comparative period - which is the preceding
period - is required for a complete set of financial statements. If
an entity presents additional comparative information, then that
additional information need not be in the form of a complete set
of financial statements. However, such information should be
accompanied by related notes and should be in accordance with
PFRSs. For example, if an entity elects to present a third statement
of comprehensive income, then this additional statement should
be accompanied by all related notes, and all such additional
information should be in accordance with PFRSs. However,
the entity need not present other primary statements for that
additional comparative period, such as a third statement of cash
flows or the notes related to these other primary statements.

-

PAS 1 - Presentation of the Opening Statement of Financial Position
and Related Notes. This is amended to clarify that: (a) the opening
statement of financial position is required only if: a change in
accounting policy, a retrospective restatement or a reclassification
has a material effect upon the information in that statement of
financial position; (b) except for the disclosures required under PAS
8, notes related to the opening statement of financial position are
no longer required; and (c) the appropriate date for the opening
statement of financial position is the beginning of the preceding
period, rather than the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented. This is regardless of whether an entity provides
additional comparative information beyond the minimum
comparative information requirements. The amendment explains
that the requirements for the presentation of notes related to
additional comparative information and those related to the
opening statement of financial statements are different, because
the underlying objectives are different.

-

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of Servicing
Equipment. The amendment is to clarify the accounting of spare
parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment. The definition
of ‘property, plant and equipment’ in PAS 16 is now considered in
determining whether these items should be accounted for under
that standard. If these items do not meet the definition, then they
are accounted for using PAS 2, Inventories.

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2009) introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Under PFRS 9 (2009),
financial assets are classified and measured based on the business
model in which they are held and the characteristics of their contractual
cash flows. PFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2010) introduces additions
relating to financial liabilities. The IASB currently has an active project
to make limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements of PFRS 9 and add new requirements to address the
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The adoption of
PFRS 9 (2010) is expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial
assets, but not any impact on the Group’s financial liabilities. PFRS 9
(2010 and 2009) are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2015 with early adoption permitted.

Financial Instruments
Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial
liability in the consolidated statements of financial position when it becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. In the case of a regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition is done using settlement
date accounting.
Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments are recognized
initially at fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received
(in case of a liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except
for those designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), includes
transaction costs.
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: held-tomaturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial assets, financial assets as at FVPL
and loans and receivables. The Group classifies its financial liabilities as either
financial liabilities as at FVPL or other financial liabilities. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired and
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whether they are quoted in an active market. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every
reporting date.
Determination of Fair Value. The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted market price or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. When current bid and
ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as long as there is no significant change in
economic circumstances since the time of the transaction.
For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is
determined by using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include the discounted cash flow method, comparison to similar instruments
for which market observable prices exist, options pricing models and other
relevant valuation models.
‘Day 1’ Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different
from the fair value of the other observable current market transactions in the
same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include
only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit) in profit or loss
unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where
use is made of data which are not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the
inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the
‘Day 1’ profit amount.
The Group has no HTM investments and financial liabilities as at FVPL as at
December 31, 2012 and 2011.
Financial Assets
Financial Assets as at FVPL. Financial assets as at FVPL include financial assets
held for trading or is designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term. Financial assets as at FVPL are carried in the
consolidated statements of financial position at fair value with gains or losses
recognized in profit or loss. Interest earned is recorded in interest income
while dividend income is recorded in other income when the right to receive
payment has been established.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required. The
Group determines the cost of investments sold using specific identification
method.
Included under this category is the Group’s marketable securities which consists
mainly of investments in quoted securities (see Note 8).
AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
financial asset categories. Subsequent to initial recognition, AFS financial assets
are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses
and foreign currency differences on AFS debt instruments, are recognized
in other comprehensive income and presented in the “Fair value reserve” in
equity. The effective yield component of AFS debt securities is reported as
part of “Interest income” in the consolidated statements of income. Dividends
earned on holding AFS equity securities are recognized as “Dividend income”
when the right to receive payment has been established. When individual AFS
financial assets are either derecognized or impaired, the related accumulated
unrealized gains or losses previously reported in equity are transferred to and
recognized in profit or loss.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks which are stated at face value.
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months
or less from the date of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.
This category includes the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, deposits under “Other current assets” and guarantee
bond recorded under “Other non-current assets” in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Notes 7, 9, 10 and 25).
Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are
not held for trading or designated as at FVPL upon inception of the liability.
These include liabilities arising from operations or borrowings. The financial
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried
at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective
interest method of amortization for any related premium, discount and any
directly attributable transaction costs. These financial liabilities are included
in current liabilities if maturity is within twelve months from reporting date.
Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent liabilities.
This category includes the Group’s trade and other current liabilities and
installment payable (see Notes 14 and 25).
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:
•
•
•

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset expired;
the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
and either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the assets; or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled, or has expired. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

The Group’s investments in equity securities included under “AFS financial
assets” account are classified under this category (Note 11).

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the assets (an incurred
“loss event”) and the loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or of the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
such as arrears or changes in economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such financial assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
integral part of the effective interest rate. The periodic amortization is included
as part of “Interest income” in the consolidated statements of income. Gains
and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. For assets carried at amortized cost, the Group
first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If there is objective evidence that
an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced

AFS financial assets also include unquoted equity instruments with fair values
which cannot be reliably determined. These instruments are carried at cost
less impairment in value, if any.

26

derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. Loans
and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within twelve months
from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
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through use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount based on the effective interest rate of the asset.

When major repairs and maintenance are performed, its cost is recognized in
the carrying amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied.

If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is
included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues, to be recognized are not included in the collective assessment
of impairment.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

The Group provides an allowance for loans and receivables which are deemed
to be uncollectible despite the Group’s continuous effort to collect such
balances from the respective clients. The Group considered those past due
receivables as still collectible if they become past due only because of a delay
on the completion of the services to be rendered by the Group as agreed in
the contract and not due to incapability of the clients to fulfill their obligation.
However, for those receivables associated to pre-terminated contracts, the
Group directly writes them off from the account since there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortized
cost at the reversal date.
AFS Financial Assets. If an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between the cost (net of any principal payment
and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss, is transferred from equity
to profit or loss. Reversals in respect of equity instruments classified as AFS
financial assets are not recognized in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment
losses on debt instruments are recognized in profit or loss, if the increase in fair
value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss.
In the case of an unquoted equity instrument or of a derivative asset linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument, for which
its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows from the asset discounted using
its historical effective rate of return on the asset.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statements of
financial position.
Instant Scratch Tickets, Spare Parts and Supplies
Instant scratch tickets, spare parts and supplies are included under “Other
current assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position.
Instant scratch tickets are valued at cost, less any impairment loss. Spare parts
and supplies are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost,
which includes all costs attributable to acquisition, is determined using the
first-in, first-out method. Net realizable value of spare parts and supplies is its
current replacement cost.
Non-controlling Interests
The acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill is recognized
as a result of such transactions. Any difference between the purchase price
and the net assets of acquired entity is recognized in equity. The adjustments
to non-controlling interests are based on a proportionate amount of the net
assets of the subsidiary.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day
servicing, less accumulated depreciation, amortization and any impairment
in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and
equipment when that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met.
Equipment under installation are stated at cost, which includes purchase price
and other direct costs. Such assets are not depreciated until such time when
the relevant property and equipment are available for its intended use.

Number of Years
4 - 10 years or term of the lease,
whichever period is shorter
Leasehold improvements
4 years or term of the lease,
whichever period is shorter
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures
4 years
Transportation equipment
4 - 5 years
Lottery equipment

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and depreciation and amortization
method are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date,
to ensure that the period and method of depreciation and amortization are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
property and equipment.
Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until
they are no longer in use and no further depreciation is charged to current
operations. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets Excluding Goodwill
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that
property and equipment and intangible assets may be impaired. If any such
indication exists and when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs to sell or its value in use and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In determining fair value less
costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss in the expense category
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate
of recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that
is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
Business Combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. The cost of acquisition is the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
instruments issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control over the net assets
of the acquired company. The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that satisfy certain recognition criteria have to be measured initially
at their fair values at acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any noncontrolling interests.
Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being
the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities. Subsequently, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment in value. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, at least annually
or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may be impaired.
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For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash generating units, or group of cash generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or group of units.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated:
•
•

represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes; and
is not larger than an operating segment or determined in accordance
with PFRS 8, Operating Segment.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit or group of cash generating units, to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit or group
of cash generating units is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognized. Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit or group
of cash generating units and part of the operations within the unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured
based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained. Impairment loss with respect to goodwill is
not reversed.
Negative goodwill which is not in excess of the fair values of the acquired
identifiable nonmonetary assets of subsidiaries and associates is charged
directly to income.
Transfers of assets between commonly controlled entities are accounted for
under historical cost accounting.
When business combination involves more than one exchange transaction
(occurs in stages), each exchange transaction is treated separately by the
Group, using the cost of transaction and fair value information at the date of
each exchange transactions, to determine the amount of goodwill associated
with that transaction. Any adjustment to fair value relating to the previously
held interest is a revaluation and is accounted for as such.
When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the
net assets plus goodwill is recognized in profit or loss.
Intangible Assets
The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and
the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each reporting date. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The Group’s intangible asset with finite life acquired in a business combination
is attributed to TGTI’s ELA with PCSO, recorded at the estimated fair market
value based on discounted cash flows and is amortized over the remaining
lease term covered by the ELA with PCSO, using the straight-line method. The
amortization expense on intangible asset with finite life is recognized under
the “Depreciation and amortization” account in profit or loss.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event; it is probable than an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and those risks specific
to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
Capital Stock
Common Stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issuance of shares of common stock and share options are recognized as
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
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Repurchase of Capital Stock (Treasury Stock)
When capital stock recognized as equity is repurchased, the amount of the
consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs, net of any tax
effects, is recognized as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are
classified as treasury stock and are presented as a deduction from total equity.
When the treasury stock is sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received
is recognized as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on
the transaction is transferred to/from retained earnings.
Operating Segments
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s
other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Group’s President to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.
The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately
according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each
segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products.
Segment Assets and Liabilities. Segment assets include all operating assets used
by a segment and consist principally of operating cash, receivables, inventories,
and property and equipment. Segment liabilities include all operating
liabilities and consist principally of trade and other current liabilities. Segment
assets and liabilities do not include deferred income taxes, investments and
advances, and borrowings.
Inter-segment Transactions. Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment
performance include transfers among business segments. The transfers, if
any are accounted for at competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated
customers for similar products. Such transfers are eliminated in consolidation.
Revenue
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, net of
discounts, rebates and applicable taxes. The following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Equipment Rental and Maintenance and Repair Fees. Income from equipment
rental of central computer, communications equipment, including its
accessories, lotto terminals, including the right to use the application software
and manuals for the central computer system and terminals and draw
equipment, as well as maintenance and repair fees are recognized based on
a certain percentage of gross sales of the lessee’s online lottery operations, as
computed by the lessee in accordance with the agreement, or a fixed annual
rental per terminal in commercial operation, whichever is higher.
Sale of Instant Scratch Tickets. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the Instant Scratch Tickets (tickets) have passed
to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, net of all
directly attributable costs and expenses.
Interest. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the
effective yield on the asset.
Dividends. Dividend is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment
is established.
Commission Income. Commission is recognized by the subsidiaries as a certain
percentage of their sales of PCSO lottery, sweepstake and instant scratch tickets.
Costs and Expenses
Costs and expenses are recognized when incurred and are reported in the
consolidated financial statements in the periods to which they relate.
Expenses are also recognized in the consolidated statements of income when
a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an asset or
an increase in a liability can be measured reliably has arisen. Expenses are
recognized in the consolidated statements of income on the basis of a direct
association between costs incurred and the earnings of specific items of
income; on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when
economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods and
the association can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or immediately
when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to
the extent that future economic benefits do not qualify or cease to qualify, for
recognition in the consolidated statements of financial position as an asset.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is
based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date of whether the
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is
made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:
a.
b.
c.
d.

there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension
of the arrangement;
a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of
the renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term;
there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is
dependent on a specified asset; or
there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from
the date when the change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for
scenarios a, c or d at the date of renewal or extension period for scenario b.
As a Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.
Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the
same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.
As a Lessee. Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at
the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognized in profit or loss.
Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term or based on the term of the lease
agreements, as applicable.
Share-based Payment Transactions
Under the plan, employees and executives (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees and executives render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transaction”) of the Group.
Share-based payment transaction in which the Parent Company grants rights
to equity on its instruments to the Parent Company’s employees and executives
and to those of LCC are accounted for as equity-settled transactions.
The cost of equity-settled transactions with executives and employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date on which they are granted.
The fair value is determined using an option-pricing model, further details
of which are set forth in Note 16. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken or any performance conditions, other than linked to the price
of the shares of the Parent Company (“market condition”), if applicable. The
cost of the plan is measured by reference to the market price at the time of the
grant less subscription price.
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a
corresponding increase in “additional paid in capital” (APIC) account, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to
the award (the vesting date). The cumulative expense recognized on equitysettled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
stock compensation expense incurred for the period represents the expense
recognized in the current period for stock option grants pertaining to the
Group’s executives and employees. No expense is recognized for awards that
do not ultimately vest, provided that all other service conditions are satisfied.
Where the terms of a share-based award are modified, as a minimum, an
expense is recognized as if the terms had not been modified. In addition,
an expense is recognized for any modification, which increases the total fair
value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on
the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for the award
is recognized immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the

cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that
it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.
Retirement Cost
The Parent Company, LCC and TGTI have noncontributory defined benefit
retirement plan covering substantially all of its qualified employees. The defined
benefit plan requires contributions to be made to a separately administered
fund. The obligation and costs of retirement benefits are actuarially computed
by a professionally qualified independent actuary using projected unit credit
method. This method reflects service rendered by employees to the date of
valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning employees’ projected
salaries. Past service costs, experience adjustments, and the effects of changes
in actuarial assumptions are amortized over the average remaining working
lives of employees to the date of valuation and adjustments, and the effects of
changes in actuarial assumptions are amortized over the average remaining
working lives of employees participating in the plan.
The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the average period until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are
already vested immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a
pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the net
cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous
reporting period exceeded 10% of the higher of the present value of defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date. These gains or
losses are recognized over the expected average remaining working lives of
the employees participating in the plan.
The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation less past service cost not yet recognized and the fair value
of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. The value
of any asset is restricted to the sum of any past service cost not yet recognized
and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity so that the amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statements do not differ materially
from the amounts that would be determined at reporting date.
Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded in Philippine peso
by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the
Philippine peso and the foreign currency at the date of transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated using
the closing exchange rate at reporting date. All exchange rate differences
including those arising from translation or settlement of monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded are recognized
in profit or loss in the year such differences arise.
Taxes
Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting date.
Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,
except:
•

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting income nor taxable income or loss; and

•

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences
and carry forward benefits of unused tax losses - Net Operating Loss Carry
Over (NOLCO) and minimum corporate income tax (MCIT), to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilized except:
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•

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income
or loss; and

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions are recognized
in the period in which the judgments and estimates are revised and in any
future period affected.

•

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgments, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting
date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable income will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into
account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes
and interest may be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities
are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors,
including interpretation of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies
on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about
future events. New information may become available that causes the Group
to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such
changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a
determination is made.
Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.
Basic/Diluted Earning Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the period attributable
to equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted-average number of
issued and outstanding common shares during the period.
For the purpose of computing diluted EPS, the net income for the period
attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company and the weightedaverage number of issued and outstanding common shares are adjusted for
the effects of all potential dilutive instruments.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial
statements. They are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Events After the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s
consolidated financial position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
5.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in
accordance with PFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses reported in the consolidated
financial statements at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these
judgments, estimates and assumptions could result in outcome that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the affected asset or
liability in the future.
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Leases. The evaluation of whether an arrangement contains a lease is based
on its substance. An arrangement is, or contains a lease when the fulfillment
of the arrangement depends on a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.
Operating Lease - As a Lessor and As a Lessee
The Group entered into various operating lease agreements as a lessor and
as a lessee. For lease agreements where the Group is the lessee, the Group
determined that the lessor retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership
of these properties which are under operating lease agreements. For lease
agreements where the Group is the lessor, the Group assessed that it retains
substantially all the risks and rewards or ownership of the assets.
The Parent Company and TGTI lease to PCSO the lottery equipment it uses for
its nationwide on-line lottery operations. Management has determined that the
Parent Company and TGTI has retained substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the lottery equipment being leased to PCSO. Accordingly, the
lease is accounted for as an operating lease (see Notes 2 and 21).
Finance Lease - As a Lessee
The Group also entered into various finance lease agreements covering certain
lottery equipment. The Group determined that it bears substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the said properties under finance
lease agreements.
The carrying amount of lottery equipment under finance lease arrangements
amounted to P159.8 million and P170.4 million as at December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively (see Notes 12 and 21).
Estimates and Assumptions
The key estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial
statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual
results could differ from such estimates:
Allowance for Impairment Losses on Trade and Other Receivables. The Group
maintains allowance for impairment losses on trade and other receivables at
a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables.
The level of this allowance is evaluated by the management on the basis of
factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors include,
but not limited to, the age and status of receivable, the length of relationship
with the customers, the customer’s payment behavior and known market
factors. The Group reviews the allowance on a continuous basis. Accounts
that are specifically identified to be potentially uncollectible are provided with
adequate allowance through charges to profit or loss in the form of impairment
losses. An impairment loss is also established as a certain percentage of
receivables not provided with specific reserves. This percentage is based
on a collective assessment of historical collection, current economic trends,
changes in customer payment terms and other factors that may affect the
Group’s ability to collect payments.
Allowance for impairment losses on trade and other receivables amounted to
P15.5 million and P11.8 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively. Trade and other
receivables amounted to P385.1 million and P266.9 million as at December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 9).
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets (except Goodwill). PFRS requires that an
impairment review be performed on property and equipment and intangible
asset with definite useful life when certain impairment indicators are present.
Determining the net recoverable value of property and equipment and
intangible asset with definite useful life requires the estimation of future
cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate
disposition of such assets or fair value less costs to sell, whichever is higher.
While it is believed that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values
reflected in the consolidated financial statements are appropriate and
reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect
the assessment of recoverable values and resulting in impairment loss.

The net carrying amount of property and equipment amounted to P326.6 million
and P305.0 million as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 12).
The net carrying amount of intangible asset with definite useful life amounted
to P5.4 million and P9.7 million as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively
(see Note 13).

In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the Group’s assumptions
are accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally
affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods.
The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year.
This is the interest rate that is used to determine the present value of estimated
future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the retirement obligation.
In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest
rates on government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related retirement liability. Other key assumptions for retirement
obligation are based in part on current market conditions.

Impairment of Goodwill. The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least annually. This requires the estimation of the value in use of the cashgenerating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating value in use
requires management to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The key assumptions used in
the impairment test of goodwill are discussed in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

While it is believed that the Group’s assumptions are reasonable and
appropriate, significant differences in actual experience or significant changes
in assumptions may materially affect the Group’s retirement obligation.

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, there is no impairment loss on goodwill. The
carrying amount of goodwill amounted to P13.4 million as at December 31, 2012
and 2011 (see Note 13).

Defined benefit liability amounted to P5.5 million and P3.3 million as at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 23).

Net Realizable Value of Inventory. The Group provides an allowance for
inventory losses whenever the value of inventories becomes lower than its
cost due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price
levels or other causes. The lower of cost and net realizable value of inventories
is reviewed at each reporting date to reflect the accurate valuation in the
consolidated financial statements. Spare parts and supplies identified to be
obsolete and unusable are written off and charged as expense for the period.

Deferred Tax Assets. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax assets to be utilized. Management expects future operations will generate
sufficient taxable income that will allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to
be utilized.
Deferred tax assets recognized in the consolidated statements of financial
position amounted to P12.0 million and P12.3 million as at December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. Deferred tax assets has not been recognized in
respect of the carry forward benefit of the subsidiaries’ NOLCO amounting to
P11.6 million and P8.4 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Note 20).

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the combined carrying amounts of instant
scratch tickets and spare parts and supplies (included under “Other current
assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position) amounted
to P57.3 million and P44.0 million, respectively (see Note 10).
Allowance for Probable Losses. The Group provides an allowance for probable
losses on input value-added tax (VAT) based on amount recoverable from the
taxation authority. The allowance account is reviewed on an annual basis. An
increase in the allowance for probable losses would increase the recorded
expenses and decrease current assets.

Contingencies. The Group currently has several tax assessments, legal and
administrative claims. The Group’s estimate of the probable costs for the
resolution of these assessments and claims has been developed in consultation
with in-house as well as outside legal counsel handling the prosecution and
defense of these matters and is based on an analysis of potential results.
The Group currently does not believe that these tax assessments, legal and
administrative claims will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated
financial position and consolidated financial performance. It is possible,
however, that future financial performance could be materially affected
by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of strategies relating to
these proceedings. No accruals were made in relation to these proceedings.
Although not a party to the case, the Management is still assessing on the
possible impact of the on-going litigation of Philippine Gaming Management
Corporation (PGMC) and PCSO that would affect the possible cancellation of
existing terminals currently operating in Luzon. No decision has been made by
the Supreme Court as at March 5, 2013. The management is confident that the
resolution of the said case will favor the Group.

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the aggregate carrying amount of input
VAT (included under “Other current assets” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position) amounted to P10.0 million and P5.1 million,
respectively (see Note 10).
Estimated Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and Intangible Asset with Definite
Useful Life. The useful life of each of the Group’s property and equipment and
intangible asset with definite useful life is estimated based on the period over
which the asset is expected to be available for use. Such estimation is based
on a collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation
and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful life of each asset
is reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence
and legal or other limits on the use of the asset. It is possible, however, that
future financial performance could be materially affected by changes in the
amounts and timing of recorded expenses brought about by changes in
the factors mentioned above. A reduction in the estimated useful life of any
property and equipment and intangible asset with definite useful life would
increase the recorded operating expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. PFRS requires certain financial assets and
liabilities to be carried and disclosed at fair value, which requires extensive
use of accounting estimates and judgments. While significant components of
fair value measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidences
(i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates), the amount of
changes in fair value would differ if the Group utilized a different valuation
methodology. Any changes in fair value of these financial assets and liabilities
would directly affect profit or loss and equity.

The combined carrying amounts of property and equipment and intangible
asset with definite useful life as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 amounted to
P332.0 million and P314.7 million, respectively (see Notes 12 and 13).
Share-based Payment. The Group measures the cost of equity-settled
transactions with executives and employees by reference to the option value
using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The valuation model requires
determining the expected volatility, risk-free rate and dividend yield. The
Group recognizes expenses based on the estimated number of grants that will
ultimately vest and will receive settlement. The Group’s average turnover rate
over the past few years is used to determine the attrition rate in computing the
benefit expense and the estimated liability.
Share-based compensation expense amounted to P0.5 million in 2010 (see
Note 18).
Retirement Cost. The present value of the retirement obligation depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost for retirement
include the discount rates, expected return on plan assets and rate of future
salary increase.

The fair value of financial assets amounted to P1.8 billion and P1.3 billion as at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The fair value of financial liabilities
amounted to P656.1 million and P374.9 million as at December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively (see Note 25).
6.

Segment Information
The primary segment reporting format is presented based on business
segments in which the Group’s risks and rates of return are affected
predominantly by differences in the products and services provided. The
operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing
a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different
markets.
The Group is engaged in the businesses of leasing gaming equipment to
PCSO (leasing activities) and sale of lottery, sweepstake and instant tickets
(distribution and retail activities), among others.
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Performance is measured based on segment income before income tax, as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Group’s President.
Segment net income is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments
relative to other entities that operate within these industries.
Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is shown below:

Revenue
Equipment rental
Commission income
Instant scratch tickets
Maintenance and repair fees
Total revenue
Segments Results
Income before income tax
Income tax expense
Net income
Segment assets
Deferred tax assets - net
Segments assets (excluding deferred tax assets - net)
Segment liabilities
Other Information
Capital expenditures
Capitalized assets
Depreciation and amortization
Finance charge
Interest income

Revenue
Equipment rental
Commission income
Instant scratch tickets
Maintenance and repair fees
Total revenue
Segments Results
Income before income tax
Income tax expense
Net income
Segment assets
Deferred tax assets - net
Segments assets (excluding deferred tax assets - net)
Segment liabilities
Other Information
Capital expenditures
Capitalized assets
Depreciation and amortization
Finance charge
Interest income

Leasing
Activities
P1,199,563,380
10,021,467
P1,209,584,847

P 183,636,923
238,233,166
P421,870,089

P504,853,797
151,829,146
P353,024,651
P1,842,313,546
7,468,717
P1,834,844,829
P364,801,266

P96,190,949
26,775,858
P69,415,091
P801,654,800
4,487,012
P797,167,788
P453,466,019

P143,715,929
23,973,392
150,053,484
(13,719,635)
4,629,989
Leasing
Activities
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P25,208,624
24,053,015
(212,094)
3,657,366
2011
Distribution and
Retail Activities

P967,955,621
13,336,786
P981,292,407

P 185,379,349
187,750,536
P373,129,885

P476,300,892
141,283,370
P335,017,522
P1,499,853,795
11,135,060
P1,488,718,735
P442,887,425

P65,628,271
4,179,228
P61,449,043
P461,008,071
1,144,419
P459,863,652
P182,234,381

P23,809,657
33,424,065
132,485,545
(23,298,328)
7,828,005
Leasing
Activities

Revenue
Equipment rental
Commission income
Instant scratch tickets
Maintenance and repair fees
Total revenue
Segments Results
Income before income tax
Income tax expense
Net income
Segment assets
Deferred tax assets - net
Segments assets (excluding deferred tax assets - net)
Segment liabilities
Other Information
Capital expenditures
Capitalized assets
Depreciation and amortization
Finance charge
Interest income

2012
Distribution and
Retail Activities

P17,278,239
18,964,644
(176,391)
207,458
2010
Distribution and
Retail Activities

Eliminations

Consolidated

P P -

P1,199,563,380
183,636,923
238,233,166
10,021,467
P1,631,454,936

(P4,305,797)
(P4,305,797)
(P338,453,439)
(P338,453,439)
(P89,066,176)
P -

Eliminations
P P (P4,404,407)
(P4,404,407)
(P287,303,041)
(P287,303,041)
(P204,721,575)
P 3,178,920
(3,178,920)

P596,738,949
178,605,004
P418,133,945
P2,305,514,907
11,955,729
P2,293,559,178
P729,201,109
P80,997,175
111,900,770
174,106,499
(13,931,729)
8,287,355

Consolidated
P967,955,621
185,379,349
187,750,536
13,336,786
P1,354,422,292
P537,524,756
145,462,598
P392,062,158
P1,673,558,825
12,279,479
P1,661,279,346
P420,400,231
P41,087,896
33,424,065
151,450,189
(20,295,799)
4,856,543

Eliminations

Consolidated

P P -

P903,670,051
163,958,267
165,983,725
13,139,426
P1,246,751,469

P903,670,051
13,139,426
P916,809,477

P 163,958,267
165,983,725
P329,941,992

P492,271,402
96,935,937
P395,335,465
P1,135,611,818
13,374,060
P1,122,237,758
P388,383,977

P60,702,219
21,273,853
P39,428,366
P305,097,804
1,099,087
P303,998,717
P49,326,571

(P4,420,766)
(P4,420,766)
(P167,685,839)
(P167,685,839)
P -

P548,552,855
118,209,790
P430,343,065
P1,273,023,783
14,473,147
1,258,550,636
P437,710,548

P43,368,296
52,348,707
122,815,498
27,156,452
5,153,806

P21,902,684
13,890,580
92,589
203,034

P (2,347,254)
(2,347,254)

P65,270,980
52,348,707
136,706,078
24,901,787
3,009,586

7.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trade receivables are generally on a 30 to 45 days credit term. The risks
associated on this account are disclosed in Note 25.

This account consists of:
2012
P268,340,856
415,495,245
P683,836,101

Cash on hand and in banks
Cash equivalents

The movements in the allowance for impairment losses as at December 31 are
as follows:

2011
P214,897,855
56,227,909
P271,125,764

Balance at beginning of year
Impairment losses recognized
during the year
Write-offs during the year
Balance at end of year

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents
are short-term investments which are made for varying periods within one
day to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group and earn interest at the respective short-term investment rates. Interest
income from cash and cash equivalents amounted to P8.1 million, P4.0 million,
and P1.9 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 19).
8.

Marketable Securities
This account consists mainly of investments in quoted shares of stock
of Leisure and Resorts World Corporation, iVantage Corporation, Belle
Corporation, Sinophil Corp., APC Group, DFNN, Inc. and Philippine Long
Distance Telecommunications Company.

2011
P234,257,753
471,918,462
(270,690,619)
20,682,977
P456,168,573

11.

Trade and Other Receivables

Less allowance for impairment
losses

12.

4,388,237
(10,800)
P11,845,344

Note

2012

2011

2
25
2

P46,387,528
11,966,152
10,929,176
9,989,866
7,549,498
P86,822,220

P35,214,447
12,893,290
8,815,479
5,060,792
4,324,107
P66,308,115

Available-for-sale Financial Assets
This account consists mainly of the Parent Company’s investments in 25
million quoted shares of stock of Leisure and Resorts World Corporation
through private placement offering by the latter on March 22, 2011.
The movements in available-for-sale financial assets are as follows:

This account consists of:

Trade
Advances to:
Contractors and suppliers
Officers and employees
Others

4,416,284
(720,000)
P15,541,628

Other Current Assets

Instant scratch tickets supplies
- at cost
Deposits
Spare parts and supplies - at cost
Input VAT
Prepaid expenses and others

The Group determines the cost of investments sold using specific
identification method.
9.

2011
P7,467,907

This account consists of:

The movements in marketable securities are as follows:
2012
P456,168,573
85,835,210
(10,099,000)
9,575,241
P541,480,024

18

2012
P11,845,344

In 2012 and 2011, the Group directly wrote off receivables amounting to
P0.8 million and nil, respectively (see Note 18).
10.

Balance at beginning of year
Acquisitions
Disposals
Mark-to-market gain
Balance at end of year

Note

Note
2
17

2012
P376,238,468

2011
P234,431,194

16,125,863
7,669,045
625,782
400,659,158

10,708,105
15,475,977
18,136,654
278,751,930

15,541,628
P385,117,530

11,845,344
P266,906,586

Balance at beginning of year
Acquisitions during the year
Mark-to-market gain (loss)
Balance at end of year

2012
P227,250,000
(19,750,000)
P207,500,000

2011
P187,500,000
39,750,000
P227,250,000

Property and Equipment
The movements in the account are as follows:

Cost
January 1, 2011
Finance lease during the year
Acquisitions
Disposals
December 31, 2011
Finance lease during the year
Acquisitions
Disposals
December 31, 2012
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
January 1, 2011
Depreciation and amortization
Disposals
December 31, 2011
Depreciation and amortization
Disposals
December 31, 2012
Net Book Value
December 31, 2011
December 31, 2012

Note
21

21

18
18

Lottery
Equipment

Leasehold
Improvements

Office
Equipment,
Furniture and
Fixtures

Transportation
Equipment

Total

P629,308,477
33,424,065
10,463,207
(55,804)
673,139,945
111,900,770
21,663,004
(14,286)
806,689,433

P58,025,438
1,895,708
59,921,146
4,181,329
64,102,475

P78,839,895
17,647,210
(510,898)
95,976,207
38,583,549
(2,457,332)
132,102,424

P58,637,367
11,081,771
(2,326,989)
67,392,149
16,569,293
(10,339,785)
73,621,657

P824,811,177
33,424,065
41,087,896
(2,893,691)
896,429,447
111,900,770
80,997,175
(12,811,403)
1,076,515,989

353,365,313
115,162,678
(38,821)
468,489,170
129,387,044
(14,286)
597,861,928

27,493,921
4,917,032
32,410,953
909,673
33,320,626

36,793,392
16,541,667
(349,313)
52,985,746
27,857,359
(2,457,332)
78,385,773

28,811,700
10,523,015
(1,806,884)
37,527,831
11,646,626
(8,839,351)
40,335,106

446,464,326
147,144,392
(2,195,018)
591,413,700
169,800,702
(11,310,969)
749,903,433

P204,650,775
P208,827,505

P27,510,193
P30,781,849

P42,990,461
P53,716,651

P29,864,318
P33,286,551

P305,015,747
P326,612,556
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a.

Certain lottery equipment were acquired under finance lease agreements.
The carrying amount of the equipment under finance lease agreements
amounted to P159.8 million and P170.4 million as at December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively (see Notes 21 and 25).

b.

The Group acquired additional transportation equipment under finance
lease agreements amounting to P13.1 million in 2012 and P11.0 million
in 2011. The net carrying amount of the transportation equipment
amounted to P29.3 million and P29.7 million as at December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively. The related liability, presented separately
as “Installment payable” in the consolidated statements of financial
position amounted to P6.8 million and P8.7 million as at December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively.
Installment payable arising from the purchase of transportation
equipment is subject to interest ranging from 3.8% to 8.9% in 2012 and
4.8% to 15.5% in 2011. The outstanding balance as at December 31,
2012 will be fully settled in November 2013.

13.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets acquired from business combinations consist of:

Goodwill
Intangible asset - net

2012
P13,363,484
5,382,246
P18,745,730

2011
P13,363,484
9,688,043
P23,051,527

The movements of the intangible assets attributed to the ELA of TGTI with
PCSO are as follows:

December 31, 2011 and 2012
Accumulated amortization:
December 31, 2011
Amortization during the year
December 31, 2012
Net book value:
December 31, 2011
December 31, 2012

Note

ELA
with PCSO
P25,834,782

18

16,146,739
4,305,797
20,452,536

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions
The estimated recoverable amount of LCC exceeded its carrying amount by
approximately P89.5 million and P84.3 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Management has identified that earnings before interest and tax and discount
rates are the key assumptions for which there could be a reasonably possible
change that could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable
amount.
14.

Trade and Other Current Liabilities
This account consists of:

Trade payables
Consultancy and software and license
fees payable
Accrued expenses:
Professional fees
Management fees
Rental and utilities
Communications
Others
Others

a.

b.

60,438,864

38,182,000
4,412,041
5,286,530
5,358,480
22,417,177
4,582,027
P572,728,918

35,457,000
5,060,577
3,101,183
4,020,599
11,804,821
4,234,991
P209,412,943

Consultancy Agreements

Scientific Games
On February 15, 2005, the Parent Company entered into a contract with
Scientific Games, a company incorporated under the laws of the Republic
of Ireland, for the supply of computer hardware and operating system
software. Under the terms of the “Contract for the Supply of the VisayasMindanao Online Lottery System,” Scientific Games will provide 900
online lottery terminals and terminal software necessary for the Parent
Company’s leasing operations. In consideration, the Parent Company
shall pay Scientific Games a pre-agreed percentage of its revenue from
PCSO’s conduct of online lottery games using the computer hardware
and operating system provided by Scientific Games. The Contract shall
continue as long as the Parent Company’s ELA with PCSO is in effect.

Key Assumptions on Impairment Testing of Goodwill
The Group performs impairment testing annually or more frequently when
there are indicators of impairment for goodwill. The Group performed
impairment testing of goodwill at December 31.
Following are the key assumptions on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

On October 2, 2012, the Parent Company and Scientific Games amended
the lottery terminals and terminals software agreement dated February
5, 2005 wherein Scientific Games will provide the Parent Company with
a license extension for the terminal software for a period from April 1,
2013 until August 31, 2015, and for the supply of additional terminals for
the Amended ELA (see Note 2).

Gross Revenue. Gross revenue of the subsidiaries over the next five years
were projected to grow in line with the economy or with the nominal Gross
Domestic Product. This assumes that the market share of the subsidiaries in
their respective industries will be flat on the assumption that the industries
will also grow at par with the economy.

Scientific Games will supply to the Parent Company approximately two
thousand (2,000) additional terminals (“additional terminals”) at an
agreed price of US$150.00 per terminal plus a pre-agreed percentage
share of gross sales generated by the additional terminals for both
VISMIN and Luzon operations.

Operating Expenses. Operating expenses were projected to increase at a
single-digit growth rate and at a slower pace than revenue.
Gross Margins. Increased efficiencies over the next five years are expected to
result in margin improvements.

During the extension period, any additional terminals not connected
to the software provided by Scientific Games will require an Inactive
Terminal Fee of US$25.00 per terminal per month.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to arrive at the present value of future
cash flows was the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC). WACC was
based on the appropriate weights of debt and equity, which were multiplied
with the assumed costs of debt and equity.
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40,121,762

The Group hired the services of several consultants for its gaming
operations. Consultancy fees are based on a certain percentage of the
gross amount of ticket sales of the terminals leased to PCSO. Consultancy
fees amounted to P148.2 million, P112.3 million, and P95.9 million in
2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively (see Note 18). As at December 31,
2012 and 2011, consultancy fees payable amounted to P10.0 million and
P51.1 million, respectively.

Goodwill
The goodwill of P13.4 million represents the fair value of expected synergies
arising from the acquisition of LCC by LotoPac.

34

2011
P,294,908

Consultancy, software and license fees, and management fees payable relate
to the following agreements:

P9,688,043
P5,382,246

In testing impairment of goodwill, the recoverable amount of LCC is the value
in use, which has been determined by calculating the present value of cash
flow projections from the operations of LCC for the remaining period of the
term of its long-term contract with the PCSO. The growth rate used of 10%
is consistent with the long-term average growth rate for the industry. The
discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 9.04% and 9.34% in 2012 and
2011, respectively. Management believes that no reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions would cause the carrying amount of the investment in
LCC to which the goodwill relates to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

2012
P452,368,901

Software and license fees amounted to P31.4 million, P21.0 million,
and P17.7 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively (see Note 18).
As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, software and license fees payable
amounted P6.5 million and P3.8 million, respectively.
c.

Intralot
i.

On March 13, 2006, the Parent Company entered into a contract
with Intralot, a company incorporated under the laws of Greece,
for the supply of online lottery system necessary for the operation
of a new online lottery system effective December 8, 2006.
Under the terms of the “Contract for the Supply of the Visayas-

Mindanao Online Lottery System,” Intralot will provide the Parent
Company the hardware, operating system software and terminals
(collectively referred to as the “System”) and the training required
to operate the System. In consideration, the Parent Company shall
pay Intralot a pre-agreed percentage of the revenue generated by
the terminals from PCSO’s conduct of online lottery games running
on the System, including without limitation, the revenue from the
ELA contract or a fixed amount of US$110 per terminal per month,
whichever is higher. The Contract shall continue as long as the
Parent Company’s ELA with PCSO is in effect.

December 31, 2012, the Parent Company has a total of 298,443,650 issued
and 292,475,250 outstanding common shares and 53 stockholders.
In 2011, certain grantees of the stock options exercised the said options
and purchased 495,000 shares at the exercise price of P8.88 per share
resulting in APIC amounting to P3.9 million.
In 2012, the BOD, upon recommendation of management, declared the
following stock dividends:

On July 10, 2006, Intralot entered into an agreement with Intralot
Inc., a subsidiary domiciled in Atlanta, Georgia, wherein Intralot
assigned to Intralot, Inc. the whole of its contract with the Parent
Company, including all its rights and obligations arising from it.

Declaration
June 29, 2012

Declaration
March 9, 2011
March 9, 2011

b.

However, the Parent Company has the option to order from Intralot
brand new lotto terminals at a higher price per unit. The Parent
Company will pay Intralot a pre-agreed percentage of the revenue
generated by the terminals from PCSO’s online lottery operations
in Luzon or US$110.00 per terminal whichever is higher.

d.

Management Agreement
The Parent Company entered into a Management Agreement with AB
Gaming and Leisure Exponent Specialist, Inc. (“Manager”) for the latter
to provide investment and management counsel and to act as manager
and overseer of the Parent Company’s operations. In consideration of the
Manager’s services, the Parent Company shall pay a monthly fee of P0.1
million and an amount equivalent to ten percent (10%) of the annual
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA).
Management fees amounted to P67.1 million and P56.1 million in 2012
and 2011, respectively (see Note 18). As at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
management fees payable amounted to P4.4 million and P5.1 million,
respectively.

15.

Equity
a.

Capital Stock
Number of
Shares

2012

2011
Number of
Shares
Amount

Amount
Capital Stock
Authorized - par value of P1
per share
500,000,000 P500,000,000 500,000,000 P500,000,000
Issued and outstanding:
Balance at beginning
of year
200,898,000 P200,898,000 200,403,000 P200,403,000
Issuance during the year
97,545,650
97,545,650
495,000
495,000
Balance at end of year
298,443,650 P298,443,650 200,898,000 P200,898,000

Pursuant to the registration statement rendered effective by the SEC on
March 27, 2007 and permit to sell issued by the SEC dated March 27, 2007
- 39,800,000 common shares of the Parent Company were registered and
may be offered for sale at an offer price of P8.88 per common share. As of

Payment
July 25, 2012

Amount
No. of Shares
Total
97,510,650 P97,510,650

2011
Date
Record
Payment
April 11, 2011
April 28, 2011
October 11, 2011 October 28, 2011

Amount
Per Share
P0.25
0.25
P0.50

Total
P50,116,500
49,761,150
P99,877,650

Treasury Stock
On July 11, 2008, the BOD authorized the Parent Company to buy back
up to 2,000,000 shares from the public as a means of preserving the value
of the Parent Company’s shares and maintaining investor confidence. In
addition, on October 14, 2008, the BOD approved to extend its share
buy-back program up to a maximum of 10% of the Parent Company’s
outstanding capital stock

Software and license fees amounted to P17.7 million, P4.0 million,
and P3.9 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively (see Note
18). As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, software and license fees
payable amounted to P23.6 million and P5.5 million, respectively.
TGTI has a contract with Intralot for the supply of online lottery
system (lottery equipment) accounted for as a finance lease. TGTI is
being charged a certain percentage of equipment rental from the
revenue from PCSO. On July 15, 2008, the Lease Contract between
TGTI and Intralot was modified such that instead of receiving monthly
remuneration calculated on a percentage basis of the gross receipts
of TGTI from ELA, Intralot will now receive monthly remuneration
calculated on a percentage basis of the Gross Receipts of PCSO from its
Online Keno games. On March 22, 2011, the Lease Contract between
TGTI and Intralot was further modified to reduce the percentage
charged by Intralot to TGTI and that TGTI undertakes a letter of
guarantee amounting to P20.0 million not later than March 28, 2011
in order for TGTI to secure the payment of Intralot’s remuneration.
The said guarantee is recognized under “Other noncurrent assets”
account in the statements of financial position.

2012

In 2011, the BOD, upon recommendation of management, declared the
following cash dividends:

On August 16, 2012, the Parent Company and Intralot further
agreed to amend the supply agreement for the latter to supply
reconditioned or refurbished lotto terminals to the former. These
additional terminals are ordered to enable the Parent Company to
serve the requirements of PSCO in the Amended ELA (see Note 2).

ii.

Date
Record
July 4, 2012

The Parent Company reacquired 3,932,800 and 2,080,500 shares of capital
stock at a weighted average price per share of P19.2 for both years for a total
of P75.6 million and P40.0 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Parent
Company sold 13,400 and 7,407,100 treasury shares in 2012 and 2011,
respectively, for a total consideration of P0.3 million and P121.5 million in
2012 and 2011 at weighted average price of P19.3 and P16.8 per share,
respectively.
16.

Stock Option Plan
On April 11, 2007, the BOD approved the Parent Company’s Stock Option
Plan (“Plan”) which provides an incentive and mechanism to employees and
officers to become stockholders of the Parent Company, as well as to qualified
directors, officers and employees, who are already stockholders, to increase
their equity in the Parent Company and thereby increase their concern for
the Parent Company’s well-being. All such full time and regular employees
of the Group and its subsidiaries, their officers and directors, and such other
qualified persons who may be recommended from time to time by the
Executive Committee or the BOD to the Committee as qualified, are eligible to
participate in the Plan.
The Plan is being administered by a Committee organized and appointed by
the BOD. The Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine from among
those recommended by the Executive Committee or the BOD to whom options
are to be granted, the time or times when such options shall be granted, the
effectivity dates thereof, and the number of shares to be allocated to each
participant at a given time.
Five percent of the Parent Company’s total outstanding common stock is
reserved for the Plan. Any unexercised option which lapses or is terminated
for any reason shall revert to the pool of shares reserved for the whole Plan,
and may be offered to other qualified participants.
The shares covered by any one grant shall be offered for subscription over
a period of three years from and after effectivity date of each grant. The
participants may exercise their right to subscribe to shares under the Plan in
accordance with the following schedule:
•
•
•

1/3 of total grant vest immediately after the grant up to and until three
years from the effectivity date of each grant;
1/3 of total grant vest after one year from the effectivity date of each
grant up to and until two years thereafter; or
1/3 of total grant vest after two years from the effectivity date of each
grant up to and until a year thereafter

The purchase price of the shares shall not in any case be less than the fair
market value of the Parent Company’s shares at the time of grant, and, in
no case, be less than the offer price at which the Parent Company’s shares
are initially offered for sale to the public. Further, the purchase price shall be
subject to adjustment for subsequent stock dividends or splits.
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On February 15, 2008, SEC approved the Parent Company’s application
requesting that its proposed issuance of 9,954,900 common shares is exempt
from the registration requirements of the Securities Regulation Code.

stock price during the option period and computed using the daily volatility
of the Parent Company’s closing prices and adjusted to annual basis. The
assumption of dividend yield of 5% was based on the projected dividend of
P0.50 and an average price of P9.78 (actual average closing price from January
1 to May 6, 2008) for the year.

On May 6, 2008, the BOD approved the Committee’s allocation of 2,174,000
shares to its executives and employees and to the officers of LCC which is
exercisable over a period of three years from May 6, 2008 until May 6, 2011.
The exercise price of the option was fixed at P8.88 per share. At the grant date,
the fair value of the Parent Company’s share amounted to P9.20 per share.
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise
prices (WAEP) of, and movements in share options during the year ended
December 31, 2011.
2011
Number
WAEP
Option outstanding beginning of the year
833,000
P8.88
Exercised during the year
(495,000)
8.88
Forfeited
(338,000)
8.88
Outstanding at end of year
P Exercisable at end of year
P As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were no options outstanding or
granted upon expiration of the exercisable options on May 6, 2011.
The fair values of the stock options are estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of stock options granted
under the Plan at grant date and the assumptions used to determine the fair
value of the stock options are as follows:
Vesting date
Share price
Exercise price
Vesting period (days)
Expected volatility
Risk-free rate
Dividend yield
Fair value of stock options

May 6, 2008
P9.20
8.88
42%
7.89%
5%
2.00

May 6, 2009
P9.20
8.88
310
42%
7.99%
5%
2.25

May 6, 2010
P9.20
8.88
675
42%
7.97%
5%
2.44

The risk-free rate used to calculate the time value of the option was determined
with reference to the Philippine Dealing Exchange rates as at grant date
corresponding to the estimated terms of the options and adjusted to zerocoupon basis. The volatility is an assumption regarding the variability of the

Share-based compensation expense recognized in 2010 amounted to
P0.5 million (see Note 18).
17.

Related Party Transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals or corporate entities. Transactions between related
parties are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with
non-related parties.
Outstanding balances as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are unsecured.
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
receivables or payables. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
the Group assessed that no impairment losses relating to amounts owed by
related parties is necessary. This assessment is undertaken at each reporting
date through examining the financial position and the amount and timing of
future cash flows of the related parties.
The Parent Company has transactions with related parties in the normal course
of business. The amounts included in the consolidated financial statements
with respect to these transactions are as follows:
a.

The Parent Company granted interest-bearing advances to one of
its officers amounting to P20.0 million which is payable within one
year subject to simple interest. Outstanding balance of the receivable
amounted to nil and P10.0 million as at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively [(included under “Trade and other receivables” account in
the consolidated statements of financial position) (see Note 9)]. Interest
income amounted to P0.2 million, and P0.7 million in 2012 and 2011,
respectively (see Note 19).

b.

Compensation and benefits of key management personnel of the Group
are as follows:
2012
P13.86
2.15
P16.01

Short-term employee benefits
Post-retirement benefits
Share-based payment

(In Millions)

2011

2010

P12.60
1.95
P14.55

P12.0
1.8
0.4
P14.2

The transactions and balances with a related party for the periods ended December 31 are as follows:

Category/
Transaction
Advances

Year
2012
2011

Note

Amount of
the Transaction

a

None of the balances mentioned above is secured and impaired.
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P0.2
0.7

Outstanding Balance
Amounts
Amounts
Owed
Owed to
by Related
Related
Parties
Parties
(In Millions)
P P 10.0
-

Terms
One year;
interest bearing

Conditions
Unsecured;
no impairment

18.

Costs and Expenses
This account consists of:
Depreciation and amortization
Personnel costs
Consultancy fees
Travel and accommodation
Rent and utilities
Communications
Management fees
Software and license fees
Operating supplies
Advertising and promotion
Repairs and maintenance
Taxes and licenses
Entertainment, amusement and recreation
Professional fees
Impairment losses on receivables
Others

Note
12, 13
17, 23
14
21
14
14, 21

9

2012
P174,106,499
153,008,774
148,162,660
103,405,234
101,844,262
71,997,020
67,114,755
49,094,301
43,475,469
42,282,501
32,593,250
20,311,885
16,479,400
14,086,551
5,158,333
25,671,610
P1,068,792,504

2011
P151,450,189
129,052,739
112,271,439
85,428,198
118,782,573
63,276,995
56,106,525
25,318,252
9,119,516
30,804,500
54,356,234
17,024,937
11,668,107
11,168,867
4,388,237
13,899,740
P894,117,048

2010
P136,706,077
130,232,563
95,869,800
94,868,958
87,881,671
68,004,936
51,533,581
21,653,584
9,402,067
41,599,309
41,644,549
30,154,500
11,552,835
19,636,289
7,134,024
19,937,141
P867,811,884

2012
P130,768,645
16,985,621
5,254,508
P153,008,774

2011
P109,108,411
15,651,519
4,292,809
P129,052,739

2010
P108,279,781
19,318,114
2,170,816
463,852
P130,232,563

2012
P8,056,855
230,500
P8,287,355

2011
P3,981,015
875,528
P4,856,543

2010
P1,927,065
1,082,521
P3,009,586

2012
P178,281,252
323,752
P178,605,004

2011
P143,268,932
2,193,666
P145,462,598

2010
P126,724,189
(8,514,399)
P118,209,790

2012
P3,843,777
3,143,711
1,662,641
903,120
593,443
1,809,037
P11,955,729

2011
P3,579,859
1,725,000
986,288
556,142
212,040
3,299,667
1,920,483
P12,279,479

Personnel costs consist of:

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Retirement expense
Share-based compensation

19.

Note
23
16

Interest Income
This account consists of:

Income from bank deposits and short-term investments
Others

20.

Note
7
17

Income Tax
The Group’s income tax expense consists of:

Current
Deferred
The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets are as follows:

Allowance for impairment loss on receivables
Accrued legal fees
Defined benefit liability
MCIT
Unrealized foreign exchange loss
NOLCO
Others

The subsidiaries’ NOLCO for which no deferred tax asset has been recognized, amounted to P11.6 million in 2012 and P8.4 million in 2011. Subsidiaries’ management
are uncertain whether the subsidiaries will be able to generate taxable income in succeeding years to utilize deferred tax asset arising from NOLCO. The unrecognized
deferred tax asset arising from such NOLCO amounted to P3.5 million in 2012 and P2.5 million in 2011. NOLCO could be carried over as deductible expense from
taxable income for three consecutive years following the year when such was incurred.
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The reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the applicable statutory income tax rate to income tax expense shown in the consolidated statements of
income is as follows:

Income before income tax
Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate (30%)
Additions to (reductions in) income tax resulting from the tax effect of:
Nondeductible expenses
Expired (unrecognized) NOLCO
Mark-to-market gain on securities
Interest income subjected to final tax
MCIT
Others

21.

2012
P596,738,949
P179,021,684

2011
P537,524,756
P161,257,427

2010
P548,552,855
P164,565,856

2,661,894
1,343,634
(2,872,572)
(2,617,888)

2,988,129
2,053,386
(6,204,893)
(1,359,362)
(13,272,089)
P145,462,598

7,167,716
(1,409,654)
(47,354,157)
(563,770)
226,904
(4,423,105)
P118,209,790

1,068,252
P178,605,004

Lease Commitments
a.

Finance Lease
Lottery Equipment. The contracts for the supply of online lottery system entered into by the Parent Company with Scientific Games and Intralot and by TGTI
with Intralot contain a lease which is accounted for as finance lease. These related equipment are included as part of lottery equipment under “Property and
equipment” account in the consolidated statements of financial position. The details are as follows:
2012
P636,230,463
476,387,769
P159,842,694

Property and equipment under finance lease
Less accumulated depreciation

Future minimum lease payments under these finance leases together with the
present value of the minimum lease payments are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years
Total future minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest
Present value of lease payments
Less current portion of obligations under
finance lease
Noncurrent portion of obligations under
finance lease

2012
P29,785,248
35,613,463
19,475,572
84,874,283
7,251,631
77,622,652

2011
P97,986,170
72,537,130
22,273,091
192,796,391
35,579,594
157,216,797

30,433,906

89,133,836

P47,188,746

P68,082,961

b.

The Group initially recognized the finance lease liability based on the fair value
of the equipment or the sales price since the minimum lease payments cannot
be established, as the monthly payment varies depending on the revenue
generated by the leased equipment.
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2012
P7,320,836
36,806
7,357,642
545,820
6,811,822
6,775,016
P36,806

2011
P6,541,404
3,159,002
9,700,406
1,037,215
8,663,191
5,721,447
P2,941,744

Operating Lease

Within one year

Amount
P23,493,750

TGTI leases to PCSO online KENO games for a period of 10 years from
the time the ELA will run in commercial operations. Rental payment is
based on certain percentage of gross amount of Online KENO games
from the operation of all PCSO’s terminals or a fixed annual rental of
P40,000 per terminal in commercial operation, whichever is higher (see
Note 2). Rental income amounted to P155.6 million in 2012, P92.2 million
in 2011, and P40.8 million in 2010. Future minimum rental income for the
remaining lease terms are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years

Amount
P24,520,000
122,600,000
67,430,000

As Lessee
a.

Transportation Equipment. The Parent Company and LCC has finance leases
covering its transportation equipment subject to a two-year term (see Note
12). Future minimum lease payments under these finance leases together
with the present value of the minimum lease payments are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
Total future minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest
Present value of lease payments
Less current portion of installment payable
Noncurrent portion of installment payable

2010
P508,849,673
280,478,863
P228,370,810

As Lessor
The Parent Company leases to PCSO online lottery equipment and
accessories for a period of eight years until March 31, 2013 as provided in
the ELA. Rental payment is based on certain percentage of gross amount of
lotto ticket sales from the operation of all PCSO’s lotto terminals or a fixed
annual rental of P35,000 per terminal in commercial operation, whichever
is higher (see Note 2). Rental income amounted to P1.044 billion in 2012,
P875.8 million in 2011, and P862.8 million in 2010. Future minimum rental
income for the remaining lease terms are as follows:

The contracts of the Parent Company remain effective until March 31, 2013,
the expiration date of the ELA. Payment to Scientific Games is based on a preagreed percentage of the Parent Company’s revenue from PCSO’s conduct of
online lottery games running under the system provided by Scientific Games.
Payment to Intralot is based on a pre-agreed percentage of the revenue
generated by the terminals from PCSO’s conduct of online lottery games
running on the System, including without limitation, the revenue from the
ELA contract or a fixed amount of US$110 per terminal per month, whichever
is higher. Payments to Scientific Games and Intralot include the non-lease
elements which are presented as “Software and license fees” account in profit
or loss (see Notes 14 and 18).
The contract of TGTI with Intralot commenced upon the commercial operation
of 200 outlets and remains effective for 10 years. Payment to Intralot is based
on a pre-agreed percentage of the revenue generated by the terminals from
PCSO’s conduct of online lottery games running on the System.

2011
P546,277,878
375,833,718
P170,444,160

The Parent Company leases certain office spaces for periods of one to
three years up to 2014. The lease agreements provide for minimum
rental commitments with annual rental escalation rate of 5%. Rent
expense charged to operations amounted to P11.5 million in 2012, P8.0
million in 2011, and P7.4 million in 2010. Future minimum lease expense
under the lease agreements are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years

Amount
P6,685,499
5,694,833

b.

LotoPac and LCC lease certain properties that are renewed annually at
the option of both companies. Total rental expense from these operating
lease agreements amounted to P33.1 million in 2012, P46.5 million in
2011, and P35.1 million in 2010.

c.

TGTI entered into lease contracts with the following:(1)Keewswen
Development Corp. for the lease of its office space for a period of five
years commencing on February 1, 2011 and expiring on January 31,

2016, (2) MBH Trading & Manufacturing Corporation for the lease of its
warehouse for a period of seven years commencing on August 1, 2010
and expiring on July 31, 2017, and (3) George W.G Angel for a parking
space for a period of one year, renewable upon mutual consent of the
parties. Rent expense recognized in profit or loss for 2012 and 2011
amounted to P1.2 million and P1.3 million, respectively.

(GOCCs) shall, before making payment on account of each purchase of
goods and/or of services taxed at 12% VAT pursuant to Sections 106 and
108 of the Tax Code, deduct and withhold a final VAT due at the rate of
5% of the gross payment thereof; and
b.

Future minimum rental expense for the remaining lease terms are as
follows:
Amount
P1,344,629
4,234,519
P5,579,148

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years

22.

Difference between standard input VAT and actual input VAT is presented as
“Excess input VAT” in profit or loss.

Other Income
23.

This account consists of:

The 5% final VAT withholding rate shall represent the net VAT payable of
the seller. The remaining 7% effectively accounts for the standard input
VAT for sales of goods or services to government or any of its political
subdivisions, instrumentalities or agencies including GOCCs, in lieu
of the actual input VAT. Should actual input VAT exceed 7% of gross
payments, the excess may form part of the seller’s expense or cost. On
the other hand, if actual input VAT is less than 7% of gross payment, the
difference must be closed to expense or cost.

Retirement Plan

2012
P23,120,692
1,983,096

2011
P17,872,850
757,650

2010
P14,831,223
21,750

1,131,000
375,304
P26,610,092

1,270,296
4,218,136
P24,118,932

2,083,977
1,125,072
P18,062,022

The Parent Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit plan
covering substantially all of its regular employees. In 2008 and 2011, LCC
and TGTI, respectively, established noncontributory defined benefit plans
covering substantially all of its regular employees. LCC started to fund its plan
asset by contributing P3.2 million and P2.0 million to the plan in 2012 and
2011, respectively, while for TGTI, it is still unfunded as at December 31, 2012
and 2011.

On September 1, 2005, the Commissioner of Bureau of Internal Revenue
(BIR) signed Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 16-2005, which took effect
on November 1, 2005. The RR, among others, introduces the following
changes:

The following tables summarize the components of the Parent Company,
LCC and TGTI retirement benefit expense recognized in profit or loss and
defined benefit liability recognized in the consolidated statements of financial
position:

Excess input VAT
Dividend income
Commission income from
winning tickets
Others

a.

The government or any of its political subdivisions, instrumentalities
or agencies, including government-owned or controlled corporations

Retirement Expense (recorded under “Operating expenses”)

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of actuarial loss
Retirement expense

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Past service cost
Amortization of actuarial gain
Retirement expense

Current service cost
Interest cost
Amortization of actuarial loss
Retirement expense

Note

18
Note

18
Note

18

Parent Company
2011
P2,049,967
1,184,306
(621,355)
P2,612,918

2012
P2,848,665
1,132,397
(805,534)
56,486
P3,232,014

LCC
2011
P837,201
257,176
38,921
25,310
P1,158,608

2012
P1,105,136
356,407
(100,000)
47,597
P1,409,140
2012
P525,200
68,519
19,635
P613,354

TGTI

2010
P1,071,355
1,040,809
(497,500)
(55,347)
P1,559,317
2010
P463,987
147,512
P611,499

2011
P495,200
26,083
P521,283

Defined Benefit Liability

Present value of defined benefit liability
Fair value of plan assets
Unfunded obligation
Unrecognized actuarial losses
Defined benefit liability

Parent Company
P24,937,530
(17,876,262)
7,061,268
(5,297,623)
P1,763,645

2012
LCC
P6,378,910
(2,078,879)
4,300,031
(1,656,178)
P2,643,853

TGTI
P1,565,619
1,565,619
(430,982)
P1,134,637

Total
P32,882,059
(19,955,141)
12,926,918
(7,384,783)
P5,542,135

Present value of defined benefit liability
Fair value of plan assets
Unfunded obligation
Unrecognized actuarial losses
Defined benefit liability

Parent Company
P18,003,138
(13,146,064)
4,857,074
(3,325,443)
P1,531,631

2011
LCC
P5,233,581
(2,000,000)
3,233,581
(1,998,868)
P1,234,713

TGTI
P971,900
971,900
(450,617)
P521,283

Total
P24,208,619
(15,146,064)
9,062,555
(5,774,928)
P3,287,627
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit liability are as follows:

Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss on obligations
Balance at end of year

Parent Company
P18,003,138
2,848,665
1,132,397
2,953,330
P24,937,530

2012
LCC
P5,233,581
1,105,136
356,407
(316,214)
P6,378,910

TGTI
P971,900
525,200
68,519
P1,565,619

Total
P24,208,619
4,479,001
1,557,323
2,637,116
P32,882,059

Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Past service cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial loss on obligations
Balance at end of year

Parent Company
P14,934,500
2,049,967
1,184,306
(3,640,782)
3,475,147
P18,003,138

2011
LCC
P3,206,688
837,201
257,176
38,921
893,595
P5,233,581

TGTI
P 495,200
26,083
450,617
P971,900

Total
P18,141,188
3,382,368
1,467,565
38,921
(3,640,782)
4,819,359
P24,208,619

Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Balance at beginning of year
Contributions
Expected return on plan assets
Benefits paid
Actuarial gain
Balance at end of year
Actual return on plan assets

2012
P13,146,064
3,000,000
805,534
924,664
P17,876,262
P1,730,198

Balance at beginning of year
Contributions
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial loss
Balance at end of year
Actual return on plan assets

2012
P2,000,000
100,000
(21,121)
P2,078,879
P78,879

Parent Company

2011
P12,747,483
3,000,000
621,355
(3,640,782)
418,008
P13,146,064
P1,039,363

LCC

2011
P 2,000,000
P2,000,000
P -

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Bonds
Equities
Others

2012
55%
44%
1%
100%

Bonds
Equities
Others

2012
100%
100%

Parent Company

LCC

2011
67%
30%
3%
100%

2011
100%
100%

Movements of defined benefit liability are as follows:
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Balance at beginning of year
Retirement expense
Contributions paid
Balance at end of year

Parent Company
P1,531,631
3,232,014
(3,000,000)
P1,763,645

2012
LCC
P1,234,713
1,409,140
P2,643,853

TGTI
P521,283
613,354
P1,134,637

Total
P3,287,627
5,254,508
(3,000,000)
P5,542,135

Balance at beginning of year
Retirement expense
Contributions paid
Balance at end of year

Parent Company
P1,918,713
2,612,918
(3,000,000)
P1,531,631

2011
LCC
P2,076,105
1,158,608
(2,000,000)
P1,234,713

TGTI
P 521,283
P521,283

Total
P3,994,818
4,292,809
(5,000,000)
P3,287,627
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The principal assumptions used in determining the defined benefit liability of the Group are shown below:

Discount rate
Future salary increase
Effect of sale of treasury stock

Parent Company
5.62%
4.80%
7.00%

Discount rate
Future salary increase
Effect of sale of treasury stock

Parent Company
6.29%
7.00%
5.50%

2012

2011

LCC
5.80%
5.00%
5.00%

TGTI
7.05%
10.00%
-

LCC
6.8%
5.0%
5.0%

TGTI
9.21%
10.0%
-

The overall expected return on plan assets of the Parent Company is determined based on market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which
the obligation is to be settled.
The historical information for the current and previous four annual periods is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit liability
Fair value of plan assets
Deficit
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities

2012
P24,937,530
(17,876,262)
7,061,268
924,664

Present value of defined benefit liability
Fair value of plan assets
Deficit

Parent Company
2010
P14,934,500
(12,747,483)
2,187,017
799,984

2011
P18,003,138
(13,146,064)
4,857,074
418,008

2012
P6,378,910
(2,078,879)
4,300,031

2009
P9,427,620
(8,449,999)
977,621
420,889
LCC
2011
P5,233,581
(2,000,000)
3,233,581

2008
P5,677,700
(4,718,200)
959,500
(504,265)
2010
P3,206,688
3,206,688

The Parent Company and LCC expects to contribute P3.0 million and P2.0 million, respectively, to the defined benefit plan in 2013. TGTI on the other hand is still in the
process of funding its deferred benefit plan as of date.
24.

EPS
The following table presents information necessary to calculate basic and diluted EPS during the year:
Net income attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year
Outstanding capital stock at beginning of year
Effect of issuance of shares
Effect of purchase of treasury stock
Effect of sale of treasury stock
For basic EPS
Effect of share option
For diluted EPS
Basic EPS
Diluted EPS
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income for the period by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is calculated in the same manner assuming that, at the beginning
of the year or at the time of issuance during the year, all outstanding options
are exercised. Outstanding stock options will have a dilutive effect only when
the average market price of the underlying share during the year exceeds the
exercise price of the option.

25.

Financial Instruments
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Group’s principal financial instruments are composed of cash and cash
equivalents and obligations under finance lease. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise financing for the Group’s capital expenditures
and operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as marketable securities, AFS financial assets, trade and other receivables,
deposits, guarantee bond, trade and other current liabilities, which arise
directly from its operations. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency
risk. The Group’s BOD and management review and agree on the policies for
managing each of these risks as summarized below:
Credit Risk
The Group’s trade receivable arises from equipment lease agreement with
PCSO, the Group’s sole customer. Since the Group has significant concentration
of credit risk on its receivable with PCSO, it is the Group’s policy that all terms
specified in the ELA with PCSO are complied with and ensure payment terms

2012
P416,889,714

2011
P391,591,837

2010
P429,335,805

200,898,000
97,545,650
(3,932,800)
13,400
294,524,250
P294,524,250
P1.4155
P1.4155

200,403,000
199,083
(913,000)
6,789,842
206,478,925
P206,478,925
P1.8965
P1.8965

199,948,000
239,500
(2,031,225)
1,001,250
199,157,525
530,955
P199,688,480
P2.1558
P2.1500

as agreed. With respect to other receivables, the Group manages credit risk
by transacting only with recognized, credit worthy third parties and selected
PCSO provincial district offices on their sale of instant scratch tickets. It is the
Group’s policy that the BOD approves on major transactions with third parties.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the objective
that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group,
which are composed of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, AFS
financial assets, deposits and guarantee bond, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amount of these instruments.
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the Group’s
financial assets as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 without taking into account
any collateral and other credit enhancements:

Cash and cash equivalents*
Trade and other receivables
Marketable securities
Deposits
AFS financial assets
Guarantee bond (included as
part of “Other noncurrent
assets” account)
Total credit risk exposure

Note
7
9
8
10
11

2012
P676,034,642
385,117,530
541,480,024
11,966,152
207,500,000

2011
P258,532,771
266,906,586
456,168,573
12,893,290
227,250,000

40,000,000
P1,862,098,348

40,000,000
P1,261,751,220

*excluding Cash on hand
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The table below shows aging analysis of receivables as at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Trade receivables
Advances to:
Officers and employees
Contractors and suppliers
Other receivables
Deposits
Guarantee bond (included as part of
“Other noncurrent assets” account)

Trade receivables
Advances to:
Officers and employees
Contractors and suppliers
Other receivables
Deposits
Guarantee bond (included as part of
“Other noncurrent assets” account)

2012
Past Due but not Impaired
121-150
151-180
Over
Days
Days 180 Days
P P P -

Neither Past
Due nor
Impaired
P356,217,969

91-120
Days
P7,207,907

4,940,009
16,125,863
625,782
11,966,152

-

-

-

-

40,000,000
P429,875,775

P7,207,907

P -

P -

P -

Neither Past
Due nor
Impaired
P201,255,894
5,475,977
10,708,105
2,737,913
12,893,290
40,000,000
P273,071,179

Subtotal
Impaired
Total
P7,207,907 P12,812,592 P376,238,468
-

2,729,036
-

7,669,045
16,125,863
625,782
11,966,152

40,000,000
P7,207,907 P15,541,628 P452,625,310

2011
Past Due but not Impaired
91-120
121-150
151-180
Over
Days
Days
Days
180 Days
Subtotal
Impaired
Total
P2,381,684 P4,266,957
P - P14,681,315 P21,329,956 P11,845,344 P234,431,194
15,398,741
-

-

P17,780,425 P4,266,957

-

10,000,000
-

10,000,000
15,398,741
-

-

15,475,977
10,708,105
18,136,654
12,893,290

- 40,000,000
P - P24,681,315 P46,728,697 P11,845,344 P331,645,220

Receivables that are past due but not impaired are still collectible based on the assessment of debtor’s ability to pay and collection agreement.
The table below shows the credit quality of the Group’s neither past due nor impaired financial assets based on their historical experience with the corresponding third
parties:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade
Advances to contractors and suppliers
Advances to officers and employees
Others
Marketable securities
Deposits
AFS financial assets
Guarantee bond (included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account)

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade
Advances to contractors and suppliers
Advances to officers and employees
Others
Marketable securities
Deposits
AFS financial assets
Guarantee bond (included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account)

42

Pacific Online Systems Corporation

Grade A
P676,034,642
356,217,969
541,480,024
207,500,000
40,000,000
P1,821,232,635
Grade A
P258,532,771
201,255,894
456,168,573
227,250,000
40,000,000
P1,183,207,238

2012
Grade B
P 16,125,863
4,940,009
11,966,152
P33,032,024
2011
Grade B
P 12,893,290
P12,893,290

Grade C
P -

Total
P676,034,642

625,782
P625,782

356,217,969
16,125,863
4,940,009
625,782
541,480,024
11,966,152
207,500,000
40,000,000
P1,854,890,441

Grade C
P -

Total
P258,532,771

10,708,105
5,475,977
2,737,913
P18,921,995

201,255,894
10,708,105
5,475,977
2,737,913
456,168,573
12,893,290
227,250,000
40,000,000
P1,215,022,523

Grade A financial assets pertain to those cash and cash equivalents and
guarantee bond that are deposited in a reputable bank, investments with
reputable publicly listed companies and receivables from PCSO which are
consistently collected before the maturity date. Grade B includes receivables
that are collected on their due dates even without an effort from the Group
to follow them up, while receivables which are collected on their due dates
provided that the Group made a persistent effort to collect them are included
under Grade C receivables.
Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of quoted marketable securities
and AFS financial assets decreases as a result of changes in the value of
individual stock. The Group’s exposure to equity price risk relates primarily to
the Group’s quoted marketable securities and AFS financial assets. The Group
monitors the equity investments based on market expectations. Significant
investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all
buy and sell decisions are approved by the BOD.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in equity price, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
consolidated income before income tax and other comprehensive income:
Financial Assets as at FVPL

Increase (Decrease)
in Equity Price
5%
(5%)
Increase (Decrease)
in Equity Price
5%
(5%)

2012

2011

Effect on Consolidated
Net Income
P126,767,440
(126,767,440)

AFS Financial Assets

Increase (Decrease)
in Equity Price
5%
(5%)
Increase (Decrease)
in Equity Price
5%
(5%)

2012

2011

Effect on Other
Comprehensive Income
P10,375,000
(10,375,000)
Effect on Other
Comprehensive Income
P11,362,500
(11,362,500)

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment
obligations when they fall due under normal and stress circumstances. To
limit this risk, the Group closely monitors its cash flows and ensures that credit
facilities are available to meet its obligations as and when they fall due. The
Group also has a committed line of credit that it can access to meet liquidity
needs.
The Group maintains sufficient cash to finance its operations. Any excess cash
is invested in short-term money market placements. These placements are
maintained to meet the requirements for additional capital expenditures,
maturing obligations and cash dividends.

Effect on Consolidated
Net Income
P244,650,884
(244,650,884)

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Trade and other current liabilities*
Installment payable**
Obligations under finance lease**

Less than
3 Months
P474,332,377
2,687,975
10,059,523
P487,079,875

2012
3 - 6 Months
P31,950,300
2,166,993
10,059,523
P44,176,816

6 - 12 Months
P34,907,787
1,920,048
15,901,308
P52,729,143

More than
12 Months
P30,446,283
36,806
41,602,298
P72,085,387

Total
P571,636,747
6,811,822
77,622,652
P656,071,221

More than
12 Months
P60,934,403
3,255,449
63,865,222
P128,055,074

Total
P209,074,515
8,663,191
157,216,797
P374,954,503

* Excluding other current liabilities representing statutory liabilities to the government.
** Inclusive of current portion

Trade and other current liabilities*
Installment payable**
Obligations under finance lease**

Less than
3 Months
P56,384,194
1,838,160
24,855,667
P83,078,021

2011
3 - 6 Months
P44,005,240
1,818,925
24,237,882
P70,062,047

6 - 12 Months
P47,750,678
1,750,657
44,258,026
P93,759,361

* Excluding other current liabilities representing statutory liabilities to the government.
** Inclusive of current portion

Foreign Currency Risk
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises from cash and cash equivalents and payables to certain suppliers which are denominated in
U.S. dollar (US$). The Group’s financial instruments which are denominated in foreign currency include cash and cash equivalents and consultancy and software and
license fees payable. The Group maintains a U.S. dollar account to match its foreign currency requirements.
As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, assets and liabilities denominated in US$ include cash and cash equivalents amounting to P28.4 million (US$691,839) and
P15.6 million (US$355,360), respectively; and consultancy and software and license fees payable amounting to P30.9 million (US$752,515) and P16.9 million
(US$384,641), respectively.
In translating foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities into peso amounts, the exchange rates used were P41.05 and P43.84 to US$1, the Philippine
peso to U.S. dollar exchange rates as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in the Philippine peso (Php)-US$ exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s consolidated income before tax. There
is no other impact on the Group’s equity other that those already affecting
profit or loss.

2012

Increase(Decrease)
in U.S. Dollar
Exchange Rate

2011

Effect on
Income before
Income Tax

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
and trade and other current liabilities approximate their fair values due to the
short-term nature of the transactions.
The carrying amount of interest-bearing advances to related parties
approximates fair value due to recent and regular repricing (i.e., monthly)
based on market conditions. The fair values of marketable securities and AFS
financial assets are based on quoted prices.

Effect on
Equity

5%
(5%)

(P124,537)
124,537

(P87,176)
87,176

5%
(5%)

(P64,419)
64,419

(P45,093)
45,093

The fair value of installment payable and obligations under finance lease with
fixed interest rate is based on the discounted net present value of cash flows
using the prevailing MART 1 rates ranging from .78% to 4.14% in 2012 and
1.97% to 3.44% in 2011.
Fair Value Hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

The increase in US$ rate means stronger US$ against peso while the decrease
in US$ means stronger peso against the US$.
Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, reacquire its own shares, or issue new shares. The
Group monitors capital on the basis of current ratio and debt-to-equity ratio.
The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from prior year, was to maintain
current ratio and debt-to-equity ratio at manageable levels.

2011
P1,060,509,038
346,087,899
3.06

2012
P729,201,109
1,576,313,798
0.46:1:00

2011
P420,400,231
1,253,158,594
0.34:1.00

•

Level 2:

inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices)
or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and

•

Level 3:

inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

P541,480,024

P -

P -

P541,480,024

2011
AFS
Financial
Assets
2012

456,168,573

-

-

456,168,573

207,500,000

-

-

207,500,000

2011

227,250,000

-

-

227,250,000

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.

Debt-to-Equity Ratio

Total liabilities
Total equity
Debt-to-equity ratio

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

Securities
2012

Current Ratio
2012
P1,697,255,875
676,433,422
2.51

Level 1:

Marketable

The Group’s current ratio, calculated as total current assets over total current
liabilities, and debt-to-equity ratio, calculated as total liabilities over equity, as
at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Current assets
Current liabilities
Current ratio

•

26.

Note to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
The Group’s noncash investing and financing activities in 2012, 2011 and
2010 pertain to the acquisitions of lottery equipment through finance lease
amounting to P111.9 million, P33.4 million, and P52.3 million in 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively, and acquisitions of transportation equipment through
finance lease amounting to P13.1 million in 2012, P5.7 million in 2011, and
P17.1 million in 2010 with outstanding “Installment payable” amounting to
P6.8 million, P8.7 million, and P7.1 million as at December 31, 2012, 2011, and
2010, respectively (see Note 12).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values
of all the Group’s financial instruments as at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

2012
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Deposits
Guarantee bond (included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account)
Marketable securities
AFS financial assets
Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities:
Trade and other current liabilities*
Installment payable (inclusive of current portion)
Obligations under finance lease (inclusive of current portion)

Carrying Amount

Fair Value

P683,836,101
385,117,530
11,966,152
40,000,000
541,480,024
207,500,000
P1,869,899,807

P683,836,101
385,117,530
11,966,152
40,000,000
541,480,024
207,500,000
P1,869,899,807

P271,125,764
266,906,586
12,893,290
40,000,000
456,168,573
227,250,000
P1,274,344,213

P271,125,764
266,906,586
12,893,290
40,000,000
456,168,573
227,250,000
P1,274,344,213

P571,636,747
6,811,822
77,622,652
P656,071,221

P571,636,747
6,811,822
77,622,652
P656,071,221

P209,024,515
8,663,191
157,216,797
P374,904,503

P209,024,515
8,663,191
157,216,797
P374,904,503

* Excluding other current liabilities representing statutory payables and other liabilities to the government.
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2011
Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

LEGAL COUNSEL

U1901-B, 19th Floor, West Tower
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
Pasig City, 1605, Philippines
Tel. No.		 : (632) 636-5281
Fax No.		 : (632) 636-1657

2704 East Tower
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
Pasig City, 1605, Philippines
Tel. No.		 : (632) 632-0905 to 10
Fax No.		 : (632) 635-4703

U2103-B, 21st Floor, West Tower
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
Pasig City, 1605, Philippines
Tel. No.		 : (632) 706-5281
Fax No.		 : (632) 687-7488

Tan Acut Lopez & Pison Law Offices

Manila Business Centre

Cebu Business Centre
16/F Metrobank Plaza
Osmeña Blvd., 6000, Cebu City
Tel. No.		 : (032) 255-0721
Fax No.		 : (032) 255-0635

Service and Logistics Centres
J. King Warehouse No. 8
Holy Name St., Mabolo, 6000, Cebu City
Tel. No.		 : (032) 231-9599
Fax No.		 : (032) 231-9590
2 Banner St. corner Canley Road
Bagong Ilog, Pasig City
Tel. No.		 : (632) 654-4368
Fax No.		 : (632) 654-4330

Tan Venturanza Valdez Law Offices

23rd Floor, East Tower
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
Pasig City, 1605, Philippines
Tel. No.		 : (632) 635-3671 to 78
Fax No.		 : (632) 632-1876
Website		 : www.talfirm.com
Email		 : talfirm@talfirm.com

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AUDITORS
Manabat Sanagustin & Co.

The KPMG, 9/F
6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines
Tel. No.		 : (632) 885-7000
Fax No.		 : (632) 894-1985
Website		 : www.kpmg.com.ph
Email		 : manila@kpmg.com.ph

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT
Professional Stock Transfer, Inc.

1003 10/F City & Land Mega Plaza
ADB Avenue cor. Garnet Road
Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Philippines
Tel. No.		 : (632) 687-4253
Fax No.		 : (632) 687-2733
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U1901-B, 19TH FLOOR, WEST TOWER, PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE CENTRE
EXCHANGE ROAD, ORTIGAS CENTER, PASIG CITY, 1605, PHILIPPINES
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